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Our revenues and operating profits for financial years 2002 -
2004 inclusive are shown opposite. Chart 1 shows full year
figures and Chart 2 shows half year figures.

Although revenues increased sequentially half on half and year
on year, overall sales were substantially flat for the last nine
months of 2004 when strong growth had been anticipated and
operating profits were lower in the second half of 2004. The
reason for the flat sales was that one part (albeit an important
part) of the Company’s consumer audio business sector
experienced difficulties: the DVD player market in mainland
China. industry analysts had predicted strong growth in this
market for the whole of 2004. This was borne out by the strong
demand for our products in the first half of 2004 from a diverse
range of DVD customers as they raised production volumes to
meet their anticipated growth. Wolfson ramped up production
in line with the expected demand. However, the end market
absorption of DVD players was lower than had been
predicted. As a result, Woifson suffered more cancellations
than new orders in respect of certain of its DVD related
products during the second half in the consumer audio sector.

The Company made lower than expected profits in the second
half of the year because it both geared up its overhead cost
base and ramped up production to meet the anticipated sales
demand. The Company reviewed its costs in the second half,
taking into account the actual and predicted growth in each of
our business sectors and the longer term goals of the Company
such as planned product introductions and targeting new
markets. As a result we reduced our hiring and overhead
expenditure from the previously planned levels and the Company
believes that its costs are now at a level appropriate to its
anticipated future activities.

In response to the strong customer demand in the first half of
the year, the manufacturing pipeline was producing significant
quantities of our products for DVD applications when demand
declined sharply in the second half. We responded by rapidly
reducing our commitments to our suppliers and reducing
prices to maintain our market position as a major supplier to
the DVD market. A provision was made for slow moving and
obsolete DVD related inventory at the end of the year and
inventory levels are now at manageable levels to support the
ongoing DVD business.

As a result of the foregoing, the Company made two
announcements to the financial market regarding trading
conditions during the year. In the first, on 26 July 2004, we
warned that the growth rate in sales within the consumer audio
business sector might be less than previously estimated due to
uncertainty in demand from Chinese manufacturers. On 11
October 2004, we issued a further statement downgrading our
second half revenue expectations to $56m-60m. We explained
that the main problem was in the consumer audio segment,
particularly with DVDs.

Chairman’s Statemen?t

As Chart 3 shows, the market was quick to punish the
Company for not anticipating the pending implosion of the
DVD bubble and failing to deliver the levels of growth which
the market had expected.

However, in contrast to the DVD market problems, other
aspects of the consumer audio business prospered, with
overall revenues for this sector increasing 26% in the year.
Revenues from the Company’s imaging business grew by
15% compared with 2003 and the portable business
experienced robust growth of 184% compared with 2003
in line with expectations.

In spite of the difficulties, | am pleased to report that in many
respects the Company gained further strength in 2004. The
customer base has been strengthened, particularly in Japan,
where our products are used by many well known manufacturers.
The Company has also expanded significantly its product
offering and we enter 2005 with an increased number of
design wins. | believe we are in a position — in what is projected
to be a challenging marketplace ~ to gain market share and to
grow again both our revenues and operating profits.

We thank you for your continued support.

D John Carey
Chairman

WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2004 : 07




08 : WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2004




Product and Market Overview
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By 2007, annual unit sales for the gaming marke?,
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Weeling the demands of the market

Wolfson designs and supplies products for the digital
consumer electronics marketplace. These can be found at the
heart of many consumer products sold in any retail or online
audio product reseller. These applications include mobile
phones, MP3 players, gaming consoles, DVD players and
recorders, digital cameras, LCD televisions and PC-based
scanners. Each and every one of these products depends on
a component known as a high performance mixed-signal
interface, which translates digital information from and into
analogue signals that can make or record sound and images.
These highly complex products involve market understanding
and engineering know-how and have to be made to exacting
standards of quality and performance. Wolfson is one of the
few companies in the world that specialises in the
development of mixed-signal circuits for digital audio and
imaging applications.

The digital consumer electronics market is expanding rapidly,
growing thanks to the development of technology that is more
portable, of higher quality and more easily adaptable than
what has gone before. Wolfson's products have been highly
successful in the first wave of digital consumer applications.
In a highly diversified market, Wolfson has identified — and we
believe filled - a requirement for high quality audio and
imaging solutions. Today — and in the years ahead ~ our goal
is to use our technical expertise and growing industry
reputation to expand our product range to meet the demands
of this exciting market. If a digital product can capture an
image or play a sound, Wolfson aims to have a product that
will allow it to perform these tasks better.

It takes more than engineering excellence to satisfy the needs
of a rapidly expanding market. We work closely with potentiai
customers at the beginning of our product development
cycles, typically 12-18 months ahead of their product launch,
taking great care to ensure that the products are produced to
the required specification and performance levels. This
provides important insights into our customers’ systems and
future product requirements. Further, the unique nature of each
finished product can make it costly - in terms of both time and
money - for a customer to switch to another supplier creating
a high barrier to entry for prospective competitors.

Operating and Financia: Review

Review of the yeer

The Company continued to grow strongly in 2004, in terms of
revenues and profits, supplying products into a broadening
range of applications to many of the world’s leading digital
consumer product manufacturers. In the first half of the year,
revenues were driven by the strong demand from DVD player
manufacturers in China, while in the second half, MP3 players
and games consoles set the pace.

The number of design wins increased by more than 50% to
250 in 2004, coming from a widening range of world leading
manufacturers of digital consumer products such as Apple,
Hewlett Packard, LG Electronics, Pentax, PalmOne, Samsung,
Sanyo, Scientific-Atlanta, Sharp, Sony and Toshiba. This
demonstrates our success in expanding our reach to new
markets and customers. Particularly significant has been the
growth in sales to leading consumer electronics companies in
Japan where revenues have tripled to $19.9m during the year.

Total revenues for the year to 31 December 2004 increased
58% to $119.3m from $75.7m in 2003 with profits before tax
increasing by 34% to $16.8m from $12.5m in the previous
year. Excluding costs for the litigation with Cirrus Logic, Inc.
(‘Cirrus’) (explained in more detail later), the operating profit
for the year was $20.8m (2003: $13.3m) which is 17.5% of
revenues (2003: 17.6%). The increase in revenue and
operating profit reflected strong underlying growth in all our
main business sectors and an improvement in the gross
margin of 2.5 percentage points to 49.3% (2003: 46.8%).
On a fully diluted basis the earnings per share has increased
from 9.24 cents to 18.10 cents, which includes 7.71 cents
in respect of an exceptional tax credit as described in the
Financial Review on page 28.

The Company analyses its business in three product lines:
portable applications, consumer audio products and digital
imaging applications. Each sector represents a range of end
products and has grown during the year to give the following
revenue distribution for 2004 compared to 2003:

Revenrue distribution

Portable: £5% (2003: 25%)

End products include: Digital cameras, head sets, mobile
phones, portable music players and PDAs

Consumer Audio: 32% (2033: 32%)

End products include: DVD players, set top boxes, games
consoles, Hi-Fi equipment, digital radios, LCD television,
sound cards and automotive entertainment products

imaging: 20% (2003: 28%)
End products include: Document scanners, muiti-function
printers and digital copiers

Other: 3% (2003: 8%)

Revenue received from sales of legacy custom products,
engineering services and royalties on products designed
by Wolfson which are sold by third parties.
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Operating znd Financial Review

In each sector, revenues are generated from a broad range of
products and customers. During the year the percentage of
sales made to leading consumer manufacturers in Japan
increased substantially. In 2004 no single end customer
represented more than 10% of revenues compared to 17%
in 2003, while the top five customers represented 39% of
revenues compared to 35% in 2003. Wolfson supplied over
$100,000 worth of products to over 70 customers in 2004
(2003: 47) underlining the breadth of its customer base. Not
only did the customer base increase, but the percentage of
sales to brand leading manufacturers in Japan, America and
Korea improved substantially.

In 2004, revenue growth was strongest for products used in
portable applications such as digital cameras, portable music
players and portable games consoles with revenues during
the year of $53m, an increase of 184% from the previous year.
Wolfson’s mixed-signal chips, featuring low power
consumption and high quality digital to analogue interfaces,
enable leading products, such as the Sony PlayStation
Portable among many others, to provide high quality audio
performance. An important development during the year was
the introduction of multi-media phones incorporating high
quality music storage capability and touch panel interfaces.
Wolfson’s chips feature in a range of manufacturers’ designs
and are currently used in a number of the first commercial
models, including leading brands such as the PalmOne Treo
smart phone. While the market for multi-media phones is still
relatively small, and growth in this market was disappointing
last year, the introduction of 3G networks is expected to
produce substantial growth over the next few years. The
consumer and imaging sectors also grew by 26% to $38.1m
(2003: $30.2m) and by 15% to $24.3m (2003: $21.2m)
respectively, while there was a small contribution from legacy
custom products and engineering services which declined to
$3.9m (2003: $5.7m) in line with expectations.

Revenues from products for DVD players represented
approximately 16% of total revenues in 2004, Customers are
predominantly located in China where they manufacture for
both the domestic and international markets. However, there
was a significant variation in manufacturing volumes during
the year with much stronger demand occurring in the first half
representing approximately 22% of total revenues. Excess
inventory of end products in the market place towards the end
of the first half slowed demand reducing the percentage of
sales to DVD manufacturers for the latter half of the year to
approximately 12% of total revenues. Prompt action was
taken by Wolfson management in scaling back production
and reducing selling prices on certain lines to control our
inventory, which is now almost back in line with the
requirement to support the ongoing customer demand.

In other consumer audio applications, the Company has
continued to expand its customer base throughout the year,
particularly in Japan where the latest products released by
the Company are being used in a range of consumer end
products, such as LCD TVs, digital radios, in-car
entertainment systems and games consoles.

T e T e et
CENLESIUIITNE

The Company employs the fabless business model in which it
ouisources all of its manufacturing requirements. This brings
two distinct benefits. Firstly, an ability to focus on our key
design and development strengths and secondly, relatively
low fixed costs and capital expenditure. At the beginning of
the year, manufacturing capacity was constrained but we had
the fiexibility to satisfy customer demand by securing second
sources for our key high volume products. We also made the
strategic decision to qualify a Chinese wafer foundry to supply
many of the products required by indigenous manufacturers.

Wafer fabrication is currently outsourced to Magnachip
(formerly Hynix) in Korea, Chartered Semiconductor in
Singapore, CSMC in China and TSMC in Taiwan. These
multiple plants should have ample capacity and fiexibility
for future unit growth.

The assembly and testing of products is carried out by
Unisem and Carsem in Malaysia or the more specialist
facilities at Unisem Europe in the UK.

Getting the right product to the customer at the right time is
vital. This is why we established a new Asia Pacific
distribution hub in Malaysia. This centre has shortened our
supply chain, increasing our responsiveness to customers.
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Research and Cevelopment

Wolfson is a leading technology company with a strong focus
on research and development. We believe our ability to
anticipate - and fuifil - market demand with advanced and
reliable products has been instrumental in our current success
and the structure is in place to ensure this continues. To meet
market demand for more highly integrated products,
incorporating power management, we opened a design centre
in Swindon during the year. Our engineering team in Edinburgh
continues to focus on furthering the art of audio signal
processing to produce the world’s best sounding products.

In 2004, the Company introduced 20 new products, taking the
total portfolio to more than 80. The Company undertakes all its
own R&D in-house, at its Edinburgh and Swindon design centres.

During the year, we recruited a further 24 engineers to the
Company, resulting in approximately 50% of our staff being
involved in R&D activities, including the definition of new
products, their implementation, verification and production
qualification. An important aspect of this is the creation of
efficient production test programmes which ensure that
products supplied to customers meet the necessary high
standards of performance. The product development activities
are supported by a quality system and advanced testing
diagnostic facilities. The Company is IS0 9001-2000 qualified.
The Company has a highly skilled and experienced
engineering team for the development of innovative mixed-
signal semiconductor products. This team is continuously
enhanced through our strong links with key academic
institutions, in particular the University of Edinburgh which
provides a rich source of talented engineering graduates.

During the year, we invested more than $15.9m on our
engineering activities (2003: $9.4m) to assist the Company
in achieving its goal of being at the forefront of mixed-signal
technology for interfacing digital and analogue signals to
meet the requirements of the fast moving digital consumer
market place.

Qperating and Financial Review

Sales & Merkeling

Our customers are located in key global markets and so are
our sales teams. Qur offices in the USA, Japan, China, Taiwan
and Korea are staffed by local nationals experienced in the
business culture of the region and provide our customers with
skilled technical and commercial support. To meet the
increasing demand for our products in Japan, we have
enlarged our Tokyo office and opened a second Japanese
office in Osaka. In January 2004 we opened a sales office in
Seoul to support our growing customer base in Korea, and a
further office was opened in Boston in September 2004 to
further support the US market. Since the year end we have
also established a sales office in Singapore.

As the vast majority of electronic products are built in the Asia
Pacific region, including Japan and Korea, it is natural, as
shown in the charts on page 25, that the majority of our sales
occurred there. While direct sales to the US remain small, this
masks the fact that manufacturing by customers is
predominantly subcontracted to Asia. The volume of our
products used by US companies in their giobal markets has
increased significantly. Furthermore, the growth in sales to the
brand leading consumer electronics companies in Japan has
tripled during the year to almost $20m.

For logistics reasons, the Company supplies many of its
products through independent distributors in a number of
countries in addition to direct sales to end customers and
their manufacturing subcontractors.

We promote our products through a range of technical media,
specialist trade shows and the Wolfson website
(www.wolfsonmicro.com) which, along with direct marketing
activities, assist in broadening our customer base.

Litigeticn

In February 2005 the US International Trade Commission (ITC})
issued its final determination regarding the two patent
infringement allegations by Cirrus. It held that Cirrus’ US
Patent No 6,492,928 is unenforceable because highly material
prior art was intentionally withheld from the US Patent and
Trademark Office by the inventors. There will therefore be no
restriction on the sale of the Wolfson products which had
been alleged to infringe.

The ITC issued a limited exclusion order relating to Wolfson
audio digital to analogue converter products that infringe
Cirrus’ US Patent No 6,011,501 which are shipped directly
into the US. However in early 2004, the three accused
products were either withdrawn or modified to remove the
disputed feature. As a result, there will be no effect on
Wolfson's business as a result of the ITC action by Cirrus.
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Qperating and Firancial Review

For most of 2004, the proceedings in the US District Court in
San Diego have been stayed pending the outcome of the ITC
proceedings. In the District Court proceedings, we have made
a number of counterclaims against Cirrus which include
business interference and unfair competition. We continue to
defend this case and pursue our counterclaims.

Legal costs for both cases during the year have amounted to
$4.1m, which has been charged to administrative expenses in
the Profit and Loss Account. In 2005, the legal costs for the
San Diego case are expected to be significantly lower than
the casts incurred in 2004.

Intellectual preperty

As part of our product development activities, we invest
substantial resources in the development of intellectual
property and, at present, have 23 patents granted or in
progress. We will continue to defend, with vigour, our position
with respect to our intellectual property.

Cepiltel Expendilure

The Company adopts the low cost fabless business model
but makes limited investment in capital equipment. There
were two prime factors behind the capital investment in the
year, firstly, time to market and, secondly, reduced production
costs. The faster we can evaluate, research, design, test and
deliver a product to market, the better we can meet the needs
of the customer. To support our strategy in this area, we have
invested $10.6m in capital equipment and CAD software
during the year, compared to $21.5m in 2003. A total of $6.2m
has been invested this year in production test equipment,
some of which has been consigned to assembly and test sub-
contractors for our exclusive use. In buying this equipment
ourselves, we achieve more cost-effective manufacturing and
help to ensure sufficient capacity to meet our production needs.

In addition a one off investment of $3m was made in completing
the fit out of our office and engineering facility, required by the
enlarged personnel count, at our Edinburgh HQ.

[43]

Outicolk for 230
2004 was a good year for Wolfson with new products, new
customers and new markets coming on stream. In portable
audio, the overwhelming success of the Apple iPod* mobile
digital device illustrates the consumer demand for high
performance, high quality audio products. Video is being added
to music players to create full media players that show high
quality images in addition to audio. Portable games consoles
such as the Sony PlayStation Portable, which was launched in
Japan at the end of 2004, appear to be in high demand.

Mobile phones are becoming more than just communications
devices. Many now have cameras and with improved cellular
networks, transmission of music and images are expected to
be a rapidly growing market. In countries such as Japan,
pheones are increasingly being used as sources of a wide
range of entertainment media including television.

In the camera sector, digital photography continues its steep
growth curve, with imaging and printing merely in the early
stages of consumer acceptance. In the home, products such
as DVD recorders, DAB radic and LCD TVs are becoming the
desirable products. And in the car, automotive entertainment
products such as headrest TVs and DVDs are being specified
in an increasing number of new models. Each and every one
of these products depends on components like the ones
Wolfson can - and is - supplying.

The Company has entered 2005 with the widest product range
and design wins in its history, which we believe provides a
solid platform to deliver further growth during 2005. Although
the market will remain intensely competitive, we believe we
have unique selling propositions with which to compete
successfully. We will continue to invest substantially in our
engineering capabilities and in the development of innovative
new products to meet emerging market opportunities.

David Milne
CEO and Managing Director

* Apple and iPod are trade marks of Apple Computer, inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries
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Reveruss

Revenues grew 10% sequentially in the second half of 2004
despite a 20% reduction in consumer audio revenues over the
same period. This reduction was mainly attributable to a
downturn in demand from manufacturers of DVD players, due
to high levels of finished goods inventory that they had built
up in the first half of the year. This was, however, offset by
strong growth in sales of products for portable devices which
represented over 50% of total revenues in the second haif of
the year. As anticipated, revenues from legacy custom
products and engineering services fell as we continued to
focus on developing our proprietary products.

Cross profil

Gross profit increased by 66% in 2004 to $58.8m from $35.4m
in 2003. This was mainly due to the growth in revenues and
the increase in the gross margin in 2004 to 49.3% from 46.8%
in the previous year. The increase in the gross margin was
mainly attributable to the growing proportion of sales in the
portable business sector which are more highly differentiated
and therefore generate higher margins combined with
improvements in manufacturing yields.

The gross margin in the second half of 2004 fell to 48.6%
compared to 50.0% in the first half of the year. This was due
to an additional $0.45m provided for slow moving and
obsolete inventory and a reduction in the average selling
prices of certain consumer products {mainly relating to DVDs)
to reduce excess inventory. In 2005 the gross margin is
anticipated to be in the 49%-51% range.

Crerating enzenses

Operating expenses increased by 849% in 2004 to $42.0m
from $22.8m in 2003 but included legal costs of $4.1m in
2004 and $0.7m in 2003 in respect of the actions brought by
Cirrus. If these costs are excluded, operating expenses would
have increased by 71% in 2004 from $22.1m to $37.9m.

Operating costs expressed as a percentage of turnover
increased to 35.2% in 2004 from 30.1% in 2003. These
percentages reduce to 31.8% and 29.2% respectively if the
Cirrus legal costs are excluded. Operating expenses in the
second half of 2004 increased to 36.5% of revenues from
33.8% in the first half or 32.8% and 30.5% respectively if
litigation costs are excluded.

Operating and Financia! Review

Distribulion end seiling cosls

Distribution and selling costs increased by 74% in 2004 to
$13.5m from $7.8 m in 2003. This was mainly due to the
establishment of our sales office in Korea in January 2004 and
expansion of our sales offices in the USA, Japan, Taiwan and
China. Distribution and selling costs expressed as a percentage
of turnover increased slightly to 11.3% from 10.3% in 2003.
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Research and development costs increased by 70% in 2004
to $15.9m from $3.4m in 2003. This was mainly due to
recruitment of 24 engineering staff in 2004. Research and
development expenses expressed as a percentage of turnover
have increased to 13.3% from 12.4% in the previous year and
is in line with management's expectations.
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Administrative expenses increased by 109% in 2004 to $12.6m
from $6.0m in 2003 or by 60% if the Cirrus litigation costs are
excluded. Administrative expenses in 2004 represent 10.6% of
turnover compared to 8.0% in 2003 or 7.1% and 7.1%
respectively if the Cirrus legal costs are excluded.

Interest is payable on term loans at variable rates. The Group
could therefore be affected adversely if interest rates were to
rise significantly. The Group currently does not cap interest
rates, but monitors this policy on a regular basis.
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Operating and Financial Review
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The profit on ordinary activities after tax for the year was
$21.3m (2003: $9.2m). An exceptional tax credit of over $9m
has arisen in respect of the exercise of employee share
options under Schedule 23 of the Finance Act 2003. This
exceptional tax credit has been deducted from the tax charge
of $4.6m, which would have arisen, to give a net tax credit of
$4.5m in 2004 compared to a tax charge of $3.3m in 2003.

The Finance Act 2003 enables the Company to obtain tax relief
for the gains made on the exercise of share options by
employees. The size of this tax relief reflects the fact that, on
flotation of the Company in October 2003, a large number of
employees held share options which had been issued some
years previously. Consequently, the level of gains arising on the
exercise of these options post flotation has been significant
and hence the exceptional nature of the resulting tax relief. The
deferred tax asset arising, as set out in note 13 to the financial
statements, has been recognised in respect of this relief in
2004 in view of the current profitable trading of the Company.
The deferred tax asset has been included in debtors.

There remain approximately 10 million similar share options
with exercise prices ranging from 15 pence to 75 pence still to
be exercised, and therefore there are likely to be further
exceptional tax credits arising in future. It is not possible to
predict the timing of the exercise of options which is
dependent on the decisions of individual option holders. It is
also not practicable to calculate the exact amount of the tax
relief which will be available, as this is dependent on the
market value of the Company’s shares on the date of exercise
of the options. However, for illustrative purposes only, if it is
assumed that these options are exercised at the earliest
possible date and that the market value of the Company’s
shares at 31 December 2004, of 144.5 pence per share, is
used to calculate the gain on exercise, the tax relief would
amount to approximately $3.7m and $2.1m in 2005 and 2006
respectively.

Earnings per shere

Diluted earnings per share went up to 18.10 cents (2003: 9.24
cents), which includes 7.71 cents in respect of the exceptional
tax credit. The diluted earnings per share have been based on
a weighted average of 117,636,702 shares in 2004 and
99,943,588 shares in 2003.

vidends

o

It is our intention to retain all future earnings for investment in
development and expansion of the business. We do not
expect to pay a dividend in the foreseeable future.

Bezlance shesl

Capital expenditure in 2004 amounted to $10.6m of which
$3.0m was a one-off investment in respect of completing the
fit out of the Company’s premises in Edinburgh, $6.2m was in
respect of the purchase of test and related equipment and
$1.4m was spent on computer hardware and software.

Inventory at 31 December 2004 amounted to $18.0m (2003:
$8.9m). The increase during the year was primarily due to
additional inventory necessary to support the rapidly growing
portable business. The average number of days inventory held
at the end of December 2004 was 108 days (2003: 80 days).
In 2005 it is anticipated that inventory levels will be
maintained around 80-100 days.

Total debtors increased to $25.8m at the end of December 2004
from $17.4m at the end of December 2003. Although revenues
grew by 58% in 2004, trade debtors only grew by 18% which
reflected the reduction in the number of days sales outstanding
to 41 from 54 days. At 31 December 2004, a deferred tax asset
of $4.1m (2003: $0.2m) is included in debtors and this is
described further in the ‘Taxation’ section above.

Creditors due within one year decreased by 1.6% to $14.5m
from $14.7m in the previous year. Creditors due after more than
one year amounted to $18.2m and were in respect of bank
loans, of which $17.2m related to a mortgage repayable over
20 years. This mortgage was taken out in 20083 to finance the
acquisition of the Company’s premises in Edinburgh.

Cash flow

The Company generated $20.8m cash from operations of
which $10.3m was used to finance increased working capital,
leaving net cash inflow from operating activities of $10.5m
(2003: $4.8m).

After deducting non-operating items including capital
expenditure of $10.6m the net cash outflow before financing
reduced to $2.7m (2003 outflow of $17.9m).
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Treasury and foreign exchange

The Group does not, as a matter of policy, hedge its exposure
in foreign currencies. Almost all of the Group’s revenues and
cost of sales are denominated in US dollars. The Group is
however exposed to fluctuations in the US dollar/sterling
exchange rate as over 50% (2003: 50%) of its operating costs
are denominated in sterling.

Our customers are located in many countries around the
world. This may therefore increase the risk that a counter party
to a contract may default leaving a credit exposure. This risk is
managed by selling to a diverse range of customers to ensure
that exposure to any one customer is not significant and in
certain cases obtaining either letters of credit or advanced
payments. In addition, in other instances, credit insurance
against the risk of default in payment is taken out.

Pensions

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme and
a defined contribution pension scheme. The defined benefit
pension scheme is closed to new members. An actuarial
valuation of this scheme was conducted at 2 January 2004
which showed that the value of the scheme’s assets of £3.1m
(approximately $5.4m) represented 65% of the benefits that
had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future
increases in earnings. The scheme moved from a surplus,

at the time of the last triennial valuation, to a deficit at this
valuation primarily as a result of the effects of changes in
assumptions with regard to scheme liabilities and the
investment return has been worse than assumed as a result
of the performance of equity markets in the period.

In view of the deficit arising on the actuarial valuation the
contributions of the Company increased to 12.7% (2003:
7.6%), with effect from January 2004, with contributions from
employees remaining at 6% of earnings.

Cperating and Financial Review

The total pension costs for the year were $1.0m (2003: $0.4m)
of which $0.8m (2003: $0.3m) related to the defined benefit
scheme. The Company has accounted for pension costs in
2004 in accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 24 ‘Accounting for Pension Costs’, and the
transitional disclosures under Financial Reporting Standard 17
‘Retirement Benefits’ (‘FRS17’) are given in note 21 to the
financial statements. In these disclosures, there is a deficit of
$5.5m (2003: $3.6m) after deferred tax. FRS17 prescribes
detailed rules for the calculation of scheme assets and
liabilities and indicates the net accounting surplus or deficit
that exists at the balance sheet date and is therefore prepared
on a different basis to the actuarial valuation. Fluctuations in
investment conditions and, for FRS17, prescribed
assumptions, such as mortality rates and bond yields, can
result in significant volatility in the surplus or deficit. A pension
scheme is, however, managed over the long term. Investment
and liability decisions are based on underlying actuarial and
economic circumstances with the intention of ensuring that
the scheme has sufficient assets to meet liabilities as they fall
due, rather than meeting accounting requirements.

International Financial Repcring Slendards {1FRS’)

From 1 January 2005, the Group is required to adopt IFRS
and International Accounting Standards (‘IAS’} in the
preparation of its consolidated financial statements. Therefore
the Group will issue its interim results for the period ending 30
June 2005 in accordance with IFRS. Comparative figures will
be restated accordingly.

The Standards which are expected to have most impact on
the profit after taxation and shareholders’ funds are: IFRS2
‘Share-based payment’ and IAS19 ‘Employee Benefits'.

George Eiliott
CFO and Finance Director
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Directors

David John Carey (age 68)
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Mr Carey joined the Board in November 1998 as a non-
executive director and became Chairman in January 2000.
Mr Carey is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr Carey was a
founding investor in Integrated Devices Technology Inc.,
serving as a member of the board before becoming Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer in 1982 and
Chairman of the Board from 1991 to 1999. In 1969, Mr Carey
was founder of Advanced Micro Devices Inc., where he held
several operational management positions until 1978. Prior to
that, Mr Carey worked on the development of the first
integrated circuits at Fairchild from 1963 until 1968. Mr Carey
has a degree in Electrical Engineering from Liverpoo! University.

Alastair David Milne (age 62)

At Tremp At pmel O e Tt
Chief Execulive C¥icer end Meneging Direclor

Dr Milne co-founded the Company in 13984 and serves as the
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. Dr Milne is a
member of the Nomination Committee. From 1973 to 1985,
Dr Milne directed the Wolfson Microelectronics Institute at
Edinburgh University, which developed CAD software and
integrated circuit technology. Dr Milne was Vice President of
the Royal Society of Edinburgh from October 1995 to
September 1998 and is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineers. He has a Doctorate in Physics from Bristol
University and has been a member of the Court of the
University of Edinburgh since 1998. Dr Milne was awarded the
OBE in 1985 for services to industry.

James Rebert Craig Reid {age 50)
Crisf Technical Jfficer 2nd
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Mr Reid co-founded the Company in 1984 and serves as Chief
Technical Officer and Business Development Director. From
1976 to 1985, Mr Reid held design engineering positions at
RACAL-MESL, a microwave systems company, and at
Woifson Microelectronics Institute. Mr Reid holds a First Class
Honours Degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering from
the University of Edinburgh and is currently a Visiting
Professor of Engineering Design at the University of Glasgow.

George Reginald Elliott (age 52)

=nazneizl OFicer and Fingnce Direcior

Chief !

Mr Elliott joined the Board in January 2000 and serves as the
Chief Financial Officer and Finance Director. Mr Elliott was
previously Finance Director at Calluna plc and Business
Development Director at McQueen international Lid {now
SYKES), where he was responsible for strategic sales and
marketing. Mr Elliott, formerly a partner of Grant Thornton, is a
Chartered Accountant and has a degree in Accountancy and
Finance from Heriot-Watt University.
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Jehn Martin Urwin (age 44)

Tpereltions 2ireclior

Mr Urwin joined the Board in 1994. From 1988 to 1994 he
worked for Fujitsu Ltd where he was Northern Europe
Marketing Manager. Prior to that, Mr Urwin worked for
National Semiconductor and Marconi Electronic Devices in
major account management, test and product engineering
roles. Mr Urwin has an Honours Degree in Electronic
Engineering from Nottingham University.

Barry Michael Rose {age 59)
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Nen-execulive Direcic:

Mr Rose was appointed to the Board in 2001 and serves as a
non-executive director and is the Senior Independent Director.
He is chairman of the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. From 1993 to 2001 Mr Rose was Chief Executive
of Scottish Provident UK. Mr Rose is also a non-executive
director of Baillie Gifford Shin Nippon plc and Liverpoo!
Victoria Friendly Society.

Ross King Graham {(age 57)

Norn-execulive Diregior

Mr Graham was appointed to the Board in September 2003
and serves as a non-executive director and chairman of the
Audit Committee. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr Graham qualified as a chartered accountant
with Arthur Young in 1969, and was made a partner of that
firm in 1981. In 1987 Mr Graham joined Misys on its flotation
as its Finance Director, becoming Corporate Development
Director in 1998 and finally retiring from the Board at the end
of 2003. Throughout his time at Misys he played a key role in
developing and implementing its acquisition strategy. He hclds
several non-executive directorships including Acambis plc,
Vecta Corporation Ltd and Patientline plc.

Robert Laurence Eckelmann (age 48)

Non-exesullve Cireclior

Mr Eckelmann joined the Board in November 2004 and serves
on the Audit and Remuneration Committees. From 1988 to
2002 Mr Eckelmann was employed by Intel Corporation,
where he launched its Asian business and was then vice
president and general manager of the EMEA region. Before
joining Intel in 1988, Mr Eckelmann served for six years at the
US Department of Commerce responsibie for trade policy and
negotiations with Asia and the EU. Mr Eckelmann holds
several non-executive directorships including: Emulation &
Verification Engineering, MDS Holdings and IXI Mobile.




=N

Directors’ Report end financlel statements

Direciers’ Reper

Birectors’ Remunerzdion Reper
IStatemenfofditectorSEieSpORSIDIIES]
NotesyioltheMinancialisiatementsig

WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2004 © 033




Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004.
Rrincipel eclivities

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture and supply of high performance mixed-signal integrated circuits.
Financia!

The Group’s consolidated profit for the financial year, after taxation, was $21,288,000 (2003: $9,236,000). A financial review of the
results for the year is set out on pages 26 to 29.

Dividends

The Company intends to retain future earnings for investment in development and expansion of the business and accordingly it does
not currently expect to pay a dividend for the foreseeable future.

Review of development end fuiure proszects

The report of the directors should be read in conjunction with the Chairman’s Statement and the Operating and Financial Review on
pages 4 to 7 and on pages 20 to 29 which contain details of the principal activities of the Group during the year and an indication of
future developments.

Share capita:

Details of the Company’s authorised and issued share capital as at 31 December 2004 and of options granted under the Group’s
employee share option schemes are detailed in note 17 to the financial statements. '

Research and development

The Group continues to invest in research and development of mixed-signal semiconductors.

Donations

The Group made no political contributions during the year. Donations to UK charities amounted to $13,000 (2003: $3,000).
Directors

The directors who held office at the end of the year and their interests in the shares of the Company at the year end are set out on
page 44. The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are set out on page 46.

Juergen Germies resigned from the Board as a non-executive director on 24 March 2004. Robert Eckeimann was appointed to the
Board as a non-executive director on 1 November 2004.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, DJ Carey, JRC Reid, JM Urwin and GR Elliott will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election. R Eckelmann, who was appointed a director by the Board on 1 November 2004, retires at the
forthcoming Annua! General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for election.

The names and biographical details for the directors who held office at the end of the year are set out on page 32 and details of directors’
service contracts for the directors standing for re-election are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 42 and 43.

Company Secretany

With effect from 1 January 2005 GR Elliott resigned as company secretary and Fiona Murdoch was appointed to the position.
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Directors’ Report

Substantial shareholdings

As at 21 February 2005, the Company had been notified of the following interests in 3% or more of the ordinary share capital of the
Company:

Number of ordinary shares %
Fidelity Management & Research Company 13,936,896 12.86%
Aegon UK 5,195,615 4.80%
DJ Carey 4,781,657 4.41%
Sanyo Semiconductor Corporation 4,705,200 4.34%
UBS Global Asset Management 3,810,512 3.52%
Morgan Stanley Securities Limited 3,310,298 3.05%

Purchase of own shares

At the Annual General Meeting held on 22 April 2004 the shareholders granted the Company the authority to purchase, in the market,
its own ordinary shares up to a maximum of 5,292,965 ordinary shares. This authority expires at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 21 April 2005. This authority was not used during the year and shareholders will be asked to give a similar
authority at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as set out in Resolution 12 in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Policy and practice cn payment of creditors

The Company’s policy concerning the payment of creditors for goods and services is to pay within 30 days of the end of the calendar
month in which the invoice is received (net 30 day terms), unless alternative terms have been specifically agreed in advance. This
policy and any specific terms agreed with suppliers are made known to the appropriate staff and suppliers. At 31 December 2004,
the Company had 45 days (2003: 46 days) purchases in trade creditors.

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors will be put to members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Proposed change to Articles of Association

A resolution proposing a change to the Company’s Articles of Association will be put to members at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The change concerns the indemnification given by the Company to its directors and officers and reflects an amendment to the
Companies Act 1985 which is due to come into force on 6 April 2005. Further details are given in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Annue! General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 21 April 2005 in Edinburgh. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting is contained in a
separate booklet which is being sent to shareholders along with this Annual Report.

By order of the Board

Fiona Murdoch 21 February 2005
Company Secretary

Edinburgh
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance throughout the Group and therefore to apply, where
they are deemed appropriate, the principles of corporate governance set out in the revised Combined Code (the ‘Code’). The
statement below describes how the directors have applied the principles of corporate governance and the extent to which the
principles and provisions of the Code have been complied with during the financial year ended 31 December 2004. The Company is
not classed as a ‘smaller company’, as defined by the Code, as it was within the FTSE 350 for part of the year immediately prior to
the reporting year ended 31 December 2004.

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and four independent non-executive directors including the Chairman. All of
the non-executive directors are considered by the Board to be independent notwithstanding the presumption in the Code that a
Chairman cannot be considered independent after his appointment. Biographical details of the directors serving as at 31 December
2004 are given on page 32.

Compliance with the Code

The Group has complied, throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2004, with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the Code
except as set out below:

» Throughout the year at least half the Board, excluding the Chairman, did not comprise non-executive directors determined by the
Board to be independent (Code provision A.3.2). J Germies, who resigned from the Board on 24 March 2004, represented the
interests of an institutional shareholder and was therefore considered not to be independent. On 1 November 2004, R Eckelmann
was appointed as an independent non-executive director. The Board is now comprised of four executive direciors and four
independent non-executive directors including the Chairman, all of whom the Board considers to be independent for the reasons
set out below. The Board considers that it has an appropriate number of directors, given the size and complexity of the Group, who
amongst them have the appropriate range of skills and experience. The Board's view is that the independent directors are of
sufficient calibre and number that their views have sufficient weight and influence on the Board’s decision making.

A senior independent non-executive director, BM Rose, was appointed on 22 January 2004 (Code provision A.3.3).

=
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There was no formal annual evaluation of the Board performance or that of its Committees during the year, although performance
evaluation of the individual directors and Chairman was conducted (Code provision A.6.1). The overall composition and operation
of the Board is considered regularly. 1t is planned to implement a formal annuat evaluation of the Board and its committees during
2005.
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» The Remuneration Committee now has four members who are all non-executive directors whom the Board considers to be
independent (Code provision B.2.1). This Committee had at least three members throughout the year. Until 24 March 2004
J Germies, a non-executive director, was a member of this Committee but was considered by the Board not to be independent
for the reason set out above.

» The Audit Committee did not have three members throughout the year (Code provision C.3.1). J Germies, a non-executive director
who was considered by the Board not to be independent, was a member of the Audit Committee until the date of his resignation
on 24 March 2004. The Audit Committee had two members, both of whom were independent non-executive directors, from 25
March 2004 to 31 October 2004. From the date of R Eckelmann’s appointment on 1 November 2004, this Committee has had three
members who are all independent non-executive directors.

Board composition znd operation

The Board considers all of its current non-executive directors to be independent in character and judgement. Except as set out below,
none of these current non-executive directors:

» has been an employee of the Group within the last five years;

w has, or has within the last three years, a material business relationship with the Group;

receives remuneration other than a director’s fee, participates in the Company’s share option schemes or is a member of the
Company’s pension scheme;

has close family ties with any of the Group’s advisers, directors or senior employees;

holds cross-directorships or has significant links with other directors through involvement in other companies or bodies; or
represents a significant shareholder, other than the Chairman who owns 4.41% of the Company’s issued ordinary shares; or

has served on the Board for more than nine years.
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Notwithstanding the Chairman’s level of shareholding, the Board considers him to be independent in character and judgement as he
provides objective and impartial contributions to Board meetings and conducts thorough analyses of the information provided on the
affairs of the Company.
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Corporate Governance

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board, DJ Carey, and the Chief Executive Officer, AD Milne, is clearly
delineated and has been approved by the Board.

The Board appointed BM Rose as Senior Independent Non-executive Director on 22 January 2004. He is available to meet
shareholders on request. The Group has a policy of maintaining an active dialogue with institutional shareholders through individual
meetings with members of the Board and their participation in conference calls relating to results announcements. After these
meetings the views of these shareholders are reported to and discussed by the rest of the Board.

All directors must submit themselves for election at the annual general meeting following their appointment and, thereafter, for re-
election at least once every three years. The non-executive directors are generally appointed for fixed terms of three years. The Group
seeks to retain the services of the non-executive directors for periods that may be longer than is recommended by the Code due to
their experience and knowledge. The appointment of J Germies was for a fixed term to 24 March 2004.

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board which has been reviewed and updated during the year. The
responsibilities of the Board include: setting strategy and approving the annual budget and projections; ensuring that high standards
of corporate governance are maintained; monitoring the performance of the Group; approval of financing and significant capital
expenditure; reviewing the Group’s systems of risk management and financial control; approving appointments to the Board and of
the company secretary; approving policies relating to directors’ remuneration and ensuring that a satisfactory dialogue takes place
with shareholders. The Board delegates to management a number of decisions including: the implementation of the strategies and
policies of the Company as determined by the Board, monitoring the operating and financial results against budgets and managing
and controlling the allocation of capital, human and technical resources. The Board receives detailed financial and operationat
information in order for it to monitor the performance of the key areas of the business.

The Board normally meets monthly and may meet at other times at the request of any director.

The number of scheduled Board meetings and Committee meetings attended by each director during the year was as follows:

Scheduled Board Audit Committee Remuneration Nomination
meetings meetings Committee meetings Committee meetings
DJ Carey, Chairman 11 (1) n/a 2 (& 2 @
AD Milne 11 (1) n/a n/a 2 2
JRC Reid 9 (1) n/a n/a n/a
GR Elliott 10 (11) n/a n/a n/a
JM Urwin 9 (11 n/a n/a n/a
BM Rose 11 (11) 6 (6) 2 (2 2 2
RK Graham 11 (11) 6 (6) 2 @ n/a
R Eckelmann 2 2 1 (1) 1 n/a
J Germies 2 2 1 @ 1 @ n/a

(The figures in brackets indicate the maximum number of meetings held in the period during which the individual was a director.)

During the year, the Chairman has held meetings with the non-executive directors without the executive directors present.

There is no formal training programme in place for new directors but an induction process is in place which is tailored to the individual
director’s requirements in view of their experience and prior industry knowledge. In 2005 there will be an assessment of the training
needs of the non-executive directors and individual training plans will be developed as required.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary and to provision of independent professional advice in
furtherance of their duties, at the Company’s expense. The Company maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance cover
throughout 2004. This insurance cover was renewed for 2005.

The Board has a Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. The terms of reference for each Committee
can be found on the Investor Relations section of the Group’s website at www.wolfsonmicro.com.
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Corporate Governance

Neminziion Commitiee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2003 and is chaired by DJ Carey. Its other members are AD Milne and BM Rose. A
majority of the members of the Committee are non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee, which meets not less than once
per year, has responsibility for considering the size, structure and composition of the Board and its committees, the retirements and
appointments of additional and replacement directors and makes appropriate recommendations to the Board.

Having reviewed the size, composition and structure of the Board, the Nomination Committee recommended the appointment of an
additional independent non-executive director. A thorough recruitment process, involving the services of an executive search agency,
was undertaken, which included the preparation of a description of the role and capabilities required for the appointment. This process
resulted in the appointment on 1 November 2004 of R Eckelmann as a non-executive director and member of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees. The Nomination Committee considers that the current composition of the Board is satisfactory to provide
the proper governance, administration and business counsel of the Company’s affairs, but will continue to monitor the situation in 2005.

The other significant commitments of each non-executive director were disclosed to the Board prior to their appointment and the
Board is kept informed of subsequent changes to these commitments.

Remuneration Commities

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by BM Rose and its other members are DJ Carey, R Eckelmann (from 1 November 2004),
and RK Graham. J Germies was a member of this Committee until the date of his resignation on 24 March 2004. Only non-executive
directors serve on the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee, which normally meets at least twice a year, has
delegated responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on the policy for remuneration of executive directors and other
senior executives, for reviewing the performance of executive directors and senior management and for determining, within agreed
terms of reference, specific remuneration packages for each of the executive directors and senior management including pension
rights, any compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes. In accordance with the Committee’s
terms of reference, no director may participate in discussions relating to his or her own terms and conditions of service or
remuneration. The Directors’ Remuneration Report is set out on pages 42 to 47.

The Remuneration Committee appointed KPMG LLP to give remuneration advice in 2004. Further details are included in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 42.

Audit Commitles

The Audit Committee is chaired by RK Graham. its other members are BM Rose and R Eckelmann (effective from his date of appointment
on 1 November 2004). J Germies was a member of this Committee until 24 March 2004. Currently only independent non-executive
directors serve on the Audit Committee and members of the Audit Committee have no links with the external auditors. The Board
considers that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient, recent and relevant financial experience to discharge its functions.
The Audit Committee normally convenes at least five times per year and meets the external auditors at least twice a year with no
executive directors present. During 2004 the Audit Committee met six times with the external auditors present at five of these meetings.

During the year the terms of reference of the Audit Committee were reviewed, revised and approved by the Board. The revisions to
these terms of reference did not fundamentally alter the role and responsibilities of the Committee but were updated to reflect the
recommendations of the Code.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the
external auditors and their remuneration. The Audit Committee considers the nature, scope and results of the auditors’ work and
reviews (and reserves the right to approve) any non-audit services that are to be provided by the external auditors. It receives and
reviews reports from management and the Group's auditors relating to the Group’s annual report and accounts. The Audit Committee
focuses particularly on compliance with legal requirements, accounting standards and the Listing Rutes and on ensuring that the
auditors have full access to accounting records and personnel to enable them to undertake their work. The ultimate responsibility for
reviewing and approving the annual report and accounts remains with the Board.
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During 2004 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, the business discussed and considered by the Audit
Committee included:

» the review of the Group’s preliminary announcement of the financial results for the year ended 31 December 2003 and the 2003
financial statements prior to approval by the Board and reviewing the external auditors’ detailed reports;

» the consideration and review of the Group’s 2004 interim resuits announcement and the 2004 interim report prior to approval by the Board;

the review and consideration of the Group’s preliminary announcement of the financial results for the year ended 31 December

2004 and the 2004 financial statements prior to the approval of these by the Board. In addition, the Committee reviewed the reports

received from the external auditors;

» reviewing the Group’s trading update announcements prior to release;

» the consideration and review of the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies;

» the review and discussion of the proposals from the external auditors and the interna! audit function regarding their audit programmes
for 2004;

» the approval of the audit fee and reviewing non-audit fees payable to the Group’s external auditors;

» reports from management on the Group’s main risks and the assessment and management of those risks;

» the review of the Group’s internal financial controls against the risk register;

» the review of the reports on the Group’s system of internal control and its effectiveness, reporting to the Board on the resuits of the review;

» the compilation of a policy by which staff of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in
matters of financial reporting or other matters;

» the development and implementation of a policy regarding the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors;

» the review of the performance of the external auditors at the beginning of 2004 and at the beginning of 2005 which resulted in the
Committee recommending that a resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as the Company’s external auditors be
proposed to shareholders at the annual general meeting in April 2004 and in April 2005;

» the review of reports from the internal audit and compliance functions; and

a preliminary review of the impact on the Group of the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’) and the

initiation of planning for the compilation of the interim report for 2005 in accordance with IFRS.

¥
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b
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The Committee has discussed with the external auditors their independence and has reviewed the written disclosures received from
them as required by the Auditing Standards Board’s Statement of Auditing Standard Number 610 ‘Communication of Audit Matters
to those Charged with Governance.’

The Audit Committee has developed a formal ‘Policy on the Use of External Auditors for Non-audit Services’ which aims to monitor
the non-audit services being provided to the Group by its external auditors. This policy should ensure that non-audit work is only
undertaken by the external auditors when they are the most suited to undertake it. Any non-audit work involving expenditure of more
than $15,000 requires approval of the chairman of the Audit Committee. The policy specifically prohibits the external auditors from:
making management decisions for the Group; being put in the role of advocate for the Group or conducting any other work which is
prohibited by ethical guidance. The amounts paid to the external auditors during the year for audit and other services are set out in
note 3 to the financial statements on page 56.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the arrangements by which staff of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters. A policy has been implemented and communicated to all staff
which details the arrangements which are in place for the proportionate and independent investigation of such matters and for the
appropriate follow up actions.

Internat control

The directors have overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal control and risk management and for monitoring their
effectiveness. The purpose of these systems is to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
provide reasonable assurance as to the guality of management information and to maintain proper control over income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities of the Group. No system of control can, however, provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has established an internal contrel framework consistent with the guidance issued by the Turnbull Committee. The key
elements of the system of internal controls are as follows:

Control envircnment
The Group has operational and financial controls and procedures. These controls include physical controls, segregation of duties,
authorisation controls and reviews by management.

Risk identification

The Board has established a process of identifying, evaluating and managing the key commercial, financial and general risks facing
the Group’s business. This risk identification and review process has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. The Board undertakes a quarterly review to analyse how the key business risks are being
managed consistent with the expansion of the business and its risk profile.

Financial reporting
A detailed annual plan is collated from submissions by each functional department. The projections are reviewed by the executive directors
and approved by the Board. The annual plan is rolled forward on a quarterly basis and is used to monitor and control actual performance.

Capital investment
Capital expenditure requirements are assessed as part of the annual plan. Strict authorisation processes are laid down for the making
of capital investment commitments against the plan.

Meonitoring and corrective action

There are procedures in place to monitor the system of internal controls. These include the appointment, in 2004, of a compliance
manager whose role involves the development of the Group’s internal controf systems and includes the internal audit function. The
Board annually reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls. The Group has a Quality Management System
‘QMS’, which conforms to BSI ISO 8001: 2000. This lays out the fundamentals required to control all aspects of product development
and delivery in support of the Group’s business goals and customer satisfaction. An integral part of the QMS is the phased review
process for delivering and monitoring the introduction of new products.

Communications with shareheldsrs

The directors acknowledge the importance of communication with shareholders. During the year a regular dialogue has been
maintained with major shareholders, analysts and the financial press. The views of shareholders are communicated to the Board as
a whole. Non-executive directors are available to meet with major shareholders, if requested. Investor relations and other information
is included on the Company’s website and is updated regularly.

Shareholders who attend the annual general meeting (‘AGM’) are invited to ask questions and meet with the directors informally after
the meeting. The numbers of proxy votes cast in respect of each resolution are announced after the resolution has been voted on by
a show of hands. The Company proposes a separate resolution at the AGM on each substantially separate issue and, in particular,
proposes a resolution at the AGM relating to the annual report and accounts. The chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees are available to answer any questions at the AGM relating to the report and accounts. Notice of the AGM and related
papers will be sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting.

Cornorale social, ethiczl and envirenmental pelicies

Although the Group is accountable to its shareholders it also recognises that it has responsibilities to stakeholders which include
employees, customers, suppliers, the environment and the local community in which it operates. The Board accepts its responsibility
to be accountable to all stakeholders.

Ethical business practices

The Group is a fabless semiconductor company based in the UK serving a global customer base. Test and assembly manufacturing
operations are outsourced overseas and in the UK. Our goal is to ensure that the products which we supply are manufactured by
subcontractors to internationally recognised ethical and environmental standards and laws. Our key suppliers must confirm in writing
that they meet these standards and laws.

All employees are expected to behave ethically when working for the Group and this is reflected in our policies which are detailed in
the staff handbook.
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Employees

The Group’s success depends on the quality of the people it employs and seeks to attract, train and develop talent from the UK and
overseas. The Group’s policy is to treat all employees in a manner consistent with local employment legislation, fairly and equally,
within a safe and healthy work environment. Through its qualification process for subcontractors, the Group requires them to extend
similar conditions to their employees.

The Group introduced an induction programme in 2004 and all new recruits (and other staff if they wish) are invited to participate in this
programme. The Group has invested significantly in training and development activities and most employees have participated in some
form of training or development over the past 12 months. As the Group has developed, there has been a corresponding increase in non-
technical staff. The Group provides training to enable these employees to gain a better understanding of the semiconductor industry.

Equal Opportunities
The Group is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in employment and its internal procedures (including recruitment) reflect
this. The principle is supported by the Group's disciplinary procedure and grievance procedure.

Health & Safety

The Group recognises its legal responsibilities to ensure the well being, safety and welfare of its employees and to maintain a safe
environment for visitors and any subcontractors while they are on our premises. The Group has a health and safety policy which is
accessibie by all employees on the Group’s intranet.

Environment

The Group’s policy is to behave in an environmentally responsible manner, consistent with local legislation and protocols. The Group
requires its suppliers to conform to the requirements of ISO14001, the Montreal Protocol for substances that deplete the ozone layer,
and relevant local legislation to ensure control and/or elimination of materials recognised as hazardous. Additionally the Group
encourages the recycling of waste materials, where appropriate, and encourages its suppliers to do likewise.

The Group is implementing an environmental management system based on the requirements of ISO14001. A programme of targets
and objectives, subject to periodic review, is in place to ensure continual improvement and prevent pollution. The Group aims to
achieve {SO14001 accreditation in 2005.

The Group has adopted the EIA (Electronics Industry Alliance) Materials Declaration Guide which is an industry consensus on material
bans, restrictions and disclosures. Where applicable, the Group requires its suppliers to complete and submit a chemical survey form
to demonstrate that they do not use what are internationally considered to be harmful materials. The Group has developed (or is
developing) versions of all of its products to be in lead-free format only and compatible both with conventional and lead-free scldering
processes.

Local community

The Group provides a scholarship programme for a number of students at Edinburgh University during their engineering degree
courses. As well as providing financial support, the programme includes placements for work experience and project work within the
Group. The Group provides sponsorship to employees who undertake fundraising activities for charities. It has also supported the arts
with sponsorship for part of the Edinburgh Film Festival.

Going concern

The directors have reviewed the latest forecast resuits and cash flow projections. The directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The financial statements have
therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Remuneration Commities

The Remuneration Committee is composed of the following non-executive directors: BM Rose, DJ Carey, RK Graham, R Eckeimann
(from the date of his appointment on 1 November 2004) and is chaired by BM Rose. J Germies was a member of the Remuneration
Committee until the date of his resignation from the Board on 24 March 2004. The Remuneration Committee, which normally meets
at least twice a year, has delegated responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on the policy for remuneration of
executive directors and senior executives, for reviewing the performance of executive directors and senior executives and for
determining, within agreed terms of reference, specific remuneration packages for each of the executive directors and senior
executives, including pension rights, any compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes. In
accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference, no director may participate in discussions relating to his or her
own terms and conditions of service or remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also reviews and agrees each year the
remuneration policy and approach for all staff.

Remuneration polic

The Group’s remuneration policy, for 2005 and subsequent financial years, which is set by the Board and implemented by the
Remuneration Committee, is designed to support the recruitment, motivation and retention of quality staff. In so doing the Committee
considers policy in the context of the sector in which the Group operates, of its competitors, and of the excellence the Group strives
to achieve. Remuneration packages are designed to be competitive with performance objectives aligned to the interests of
shareholiders. Particularly at a senior level a significant proportion of remuneration is dependent on performance against stretching
parameters. This policy is described in some detail below in relation to the executive directors (and senior managementy} of the Group.

Remuneration is designed to reflect an individual’s responsibilities, experience and contribution to the Group and is based on relevant
market comparators. The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice as considered appropriate. During the year the
Remuneration Committee appointed KPMG LLP to give such advice. This consisted of a review of the market place and of the
incentive plans of other similar technology companies. From this the Remuneration Committee concluded that the general structure
and level of the Group’s executive incentive scheme for 2005 was appropriate and in line with UK best practice. KPMG LLP is a firm
associated with the Company’s external auditors, KPMG Audit Plc. The fees payable to the external auditors, and its associates, for
audit and non-audit services in the financial year are shown on page 56 in note 3 to the financial statements.

The remuneration package for the executive directors and senior management team consists of a combination of basic safary, benefits
in kind and performance related incentives comprising a cash bonus and share options. The cash bonus and share options are both
subject to stretching performance requirements. The package is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee after a review of
the individual’s performance and overall performance of the business.

In 2005, there is a non-contractual, and non-pensicnable, management incentive scheme for the Group’s executive directors and
senior management, whereby a bonus pool is created on a sliding scale of up to 5% of the Group’s profits before interest and tax
(‘PBIT’) once a threshold of the PBIT has been achieved. The pool is shared among the management according to defined parameters,
70% being dependent on the Company’s financial performance and 30% on achieving defined personal objectives related to the
development of the business. The overall cash bonus payment is capped at one times salary.

In addition, under the 2005 management incentive scheme, executive directors and senior managers are awarded share options,
exercisable in March 2008. The proportion exercisable by each person is dependent on the growth rate of the Group’s normalised
earnings per share (‘EPS’) in 2007 over 2004. 100% payout is achieved if the annual compound growth rate of EPS ir the period to
2007 equals or exceeds the Retail Price Index (‘RPI’) +15 % per annum. There is a sliding scale for lower performance and no options
are exercisable if the EPS growth rate is below RPI+5 % per annum .

The Company has two pension schemes, one being a defined benefits scheme and the other being a defined contribution scheme.
The former was closed to all new entrants after 2 July 2002. All the present executive directors participate in the Company’s defined
benefits scheme providing benefits based on finai pensionable pay 1/80 th per year of employment. The current employer contribution
rate is 12.7% and 6% is contributed by each employee.

Service contracts

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of its executive directors, none of which are for a fixed term. Such
contracts are terminable by either party giving not less than 12 months’ notice. The Company may in its absoclute discretion terminate
the employment of any of the executive directors at any time by making a payment in lieu of notice equivalent to the director’s basic
salary over any unexpired period of notice.
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Details of the service contracts currently in place for directors who have served during the year ended 31 December 2004 are as follows:

Date of contract

AD Milne 25 September 2003
JRC Reid 25 September 2003
GR Elliott 25 September 2003
JM Urwin 25 September 2003

None of the executive directors served as non-executive directors of other public companies during the year.

Executive directors can accept appointments as non-executive directors of other companies and retain any fees paid to them if such
an appointment does not conflict with their duties to the Company. Specific approval of the Board is required in each case. There
were no such external appointments held in 2004,

Non-executive directors

Each of the current non-executive directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company. All the letters of appointment
are dated 25 September 2003 other than R Eckelmann’s which is dated 1 November 2004. The letters of appointment are for a fixed
term of three years and terminate automatically upon expiry of the fixed term. The Board may invite a non-executive director to serve
for an additional period. Either party may terminate the appointment at any time by giving to the other not less than one month’s
notice. Each non-executive director’s appointment may be terminated at any time without compensation in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association or the Companies Act 1985 or if the shareholders of the Company fail to re-elect him as a director.
The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined by the Board. However the non-executive directors do not participate
in discussions about their own remuneration. Non-executive directors’ fees are designed to be of a level to attract good quality
candidates to the Board and to reflect the time commitment of directors. Fee levels are reviewed yearly and are set within the
aggregate limits contained in the articles of association of the Company. The level of annual fee as at 31 December 2004 was £25,000
to each non-executive director. The chairman of the Board and of the Audit and Remuneration Committees also receive an additional
annual fee of £5,000. With effect from 1 January 2005, the basic annual fee increased to £27,000. All fees are non pensionable, and
there is no other remuneration save that the Company meets allowable expenses incurred on company business. J Germies was a
non-executive director during the year ended 31 December 2004 (having entered into a letter of appointment with the Company on
25 September 2003) but resigned from the Board on 24 March 2004. J Germies was appointed to the Board pursuant to the terms of
a subscription agreement entered into by (amongst others) the Company and West Equity Bridge Finance Limited. J Germies received
no fee in respect of his non-executive directorship prior to his resignation from the Board.

Performance graphs

The following graph charts the total cumulative shareholder return of the Company since 16 October 2003 when the Company listed on
the London Stock Exchange compared to the FTSE All Share index and the Techmark index. The FTSE All Share index is a broad equity
market index but, given the Company's technology credentials, the Techmark index could be considered equally relevant as a comparator.

Waolfsen Microelectronics ple total shareholder return
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Direclors’ sharehsidings

The directors’ interests in the Company’s ordinary shares of 0.1 pence, which exclude interests under the share option schemes, are

set out below:

At 1 January
2004

Number of
ordinary shares

Shares Shares
acquired on acquired
exercise of

share options

Number of
ordinary shares

Number of
ordinary shares

Shares
disposed

Number of
ordinary shares

At 31 December
2024

Numier of
ordinery sheres

DJ Carey 4,781,657
AD Milne 3,064,523
JRC Reid 945,300
JM Urwin 24,200
GR Elliott 9,523
BM Rose 23,809
J Germies* -
RK Graham 9,524
R Eckelmann* -

8,858,536

960,000 -
528,600 ~
- 1,800
1,488,600 1,800

(115,000)
(92,497)

4,781,857
3,084,523
*1,763,380
430,333
2,523
23,808
11,324

(207 .497)

“C, 141,438

* Of these ordinary shares: 1,580,300 are held in the name of JRC Reid; 150,000 are held in the name of M Reid, JRC Reid’s wife, in her own name; 25,000 are held in the name
of M Reid for A Reid, JRC Reid's son; and 25,000 are held in the name of M Reid for L Reid, JRC Reid’s daughter.

** Of these ordinary shares: 8,524 are held in the name of RK Graham and 1,800 are held by a trust in which RK Graham has a third beneficial interest.

* Resigned from the Board on 24 March 2004

+ From date of appointment to the Board on 1 November 2004

As on 21 February 2005, there have been no changes in the above shareholdings since 31 December 2004.

‘ndividual gspacts of remungration

The auditors are required to report on the information contained in this section of the report.

Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments in respect of qualifying services of each person who served as a director during the year ended 31 December 2004 were
as shown opposite. Note that these amounts are expressed in US dollars, the Group’s functional and reporting currency, though actually
paid in sterling and the average exchange rate used in the year ended 31 December 2004 was $1.8206 to £1 (2003: $1.6241 to £1).
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Salary / fee Bonuses Benefits Totat 2004 Total 2003
$000 $000 $000 $00C $000

Executlive directors
AD Milne 273 76 26 375 356
JRC Reid 200 53 16 269 251
GR Elliott 209 45 29 283 272
JM Urwin 191 53 13 257 245
Non-executive directors
DJ Carey 68 - - 68 -
BM Rose 55 - - 55 34
RK Graham 55 - - 55 18
R Eckelmann® 8 - - 8 -
Former non-executive directors
J Germies - - -~ - -
Totals 1,058 227 84 1,370 1,176

* R Eckelmann joined the Board on 1 November 2004,
** RK Graham joined the Board on 25 September 2003.

There is no arrangement under which a director has agreed to waive future emoluments nor have there been any such waivers during
the financial year. There have been no payments for compensation for loss of office nor other awards made during the financial year

to any person who was formerly a director of the Company.

Benefits consist primarily of a car and private family healthcare cover. Only the executive directors’ salaries are pensionable. The
executive directors were also granted options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares under the Company’s share option schemes. Details
of share options granted to, and exercised by, directors and the aggregate gains realised on exercised options in the year are given

on pages 46 and 47.

Pensions

Ali of the executive directors participate in the Wolfson Microelectronics plc Pension Scheme which is a defined benefit pension
scheme. Details of the entitlements of those who served as directors during the year ended 31 December 2004 are as follows:

Accrued Increase Increase Transfer Transfer Increase in Increase in

benefit at in accrued in accrued value of value of transfer transfer value

31 December benefits benefits accrued accrued value less excluding

2004 excluding including benefits at benefits at directors’ infiation less

infiation (A) inflation 31 December 31 Decembar contributions directors’

2003 2C84 contributions

$000 $000 $000 $000 $£30 $000 $000

AD Milne 139 20 24 1,794 2,264 453 449
JRC Reid 76 10 12 566 706 128 126
GR Eliiott 14 3 4 99 141 31 30
JM Urwin 27 6 7 134 186 40 39

Details of pension policy are provided on page 42.
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Share options

Details of share options of those executive directors who served during the year are set out in this table. Non-executive directors have

no share options:

At Exercised Lapsed Granted AL Exercise Date from Expiry

01.01.04 during during during 31.12.04 price which date
year year year exercisable

AD Miine ** 460,000 - - - 486C,000 £0.15 17.12.02 23.03.06

190,000 - - - 180,008 £0.15 17.12.02 17.12.09

“* 460,000 - - - 480,000 £0.15 17.12.02 23.03.11

490,000 - - - 480,000 £0.20 20.03.05 20.03.09

10,000 - - - 10,600 £0.20 20.03.05 20.03.12

220,000 - - - 220,000 £0.40 01.01.06 01.01.10

498,900 - - - 488,800 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.10

1,100 - - -~ 1,1C0 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.13

- - - 110,024 110,024 £2.045 31.03.07 30.07.14

JRC Reid 310,600 (310,600) - - - £0.03 15.12.98 15.12.05

39,400 (39,400) - - - £0.03 31.01.89 31.01.06

180,000 (180,000) - - - £0.25 18.08.00 18.08.04

“* 430,000 {310,000) - - 120,000 £0.15 17.12.02 17.12.06

120,000 (120,000) - - - £0.15 17.12.02 17.12.09

** 430,000 - (310,000) - 120,000 £0.15 17.12.02 23.03.11

220,000 - - - 220,000 £0.20 20.03.05 20.03.09

30,000 - - - 30,030 £0.20 20.03.05 20.03.12

82,000 - - - 82,6090 £0.40 01.01.06 01.01.10

345,900 - - - 345,900 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.10

4,100 - - - 4,103 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.13

- - - 67,237 67,237 £2.045 31.03.07 30.07.14

JM Urwin 176,200 (176,200) - - - £0.03 15.12.98 15.12.05

22,400 (22,400) - - - £0.03 31.01.99 31.01.06

180,000 (180,000 - - - £0.25 18.08.00 18.08.04

** 150,000 - - - 150,000 £0.15 17.12.02 17.12.06

150,000 (150,000) - - - £0.15 17.12.02 17.12.09

** 150,000 - - - 150,000 £0.15 17.12.02 23.03.11

121,400 - - - 121,400 £0.15 23.03.04 23.03.11

100,000 - - - 100,020 £0.20 20.03.05 20.03.09

150,000 - - - 150,000 £0.20 20.03.05 20.03.12

79,000 - - - 76,000 £0.40 01.01.06 01.01.10

296,900 - - - 285,200 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.10

3,100 -~ - - 3,100 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.13

- - - 64,181 54,181% £2.045 31.03.07 30.07.14

GR Elliott 10,000 - - - 10,000 £0.15 03.01.03 03.01.07

180,000 - - - 180,000 £0.15 03.01.03 03.01.10

** 10,000 - - - 10,000 £0.15 03.01.03 23.03.11

400,000 - - - 400,000 £0.15 23.03.04 23.03.11

88,000 - - - 88,000 £0.40 01.01.06 01.01.10

201,400 - - - 201,400 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.10

48,600 - - - 48,6002 £0.75 14.08.06 14.08.13

- - - 70,293 70,293 £2.045 31.03.07 30.07.14

** The ordinary shares comprising those options granted on 17 December 1999 and 3 January 2000 are subject to parallel option arrangements, whereby corresponding options
were granted on 23 March 2001 on the basis that option holders may only exercise one of the options within these parallel arrangements but not both.
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No amounts were payable for the award of the share options. Under the 2004 management incentive scheme, executive directors and
senior managers were awarded share options exercisable in March 2007. The proportion exercisable by each person is dependent on
the growth rate of the Group’s normalised earnings per share (‘'EPS’) over 2003. 100% payout is achieved if the annual compound
growth rate of EPS in 2006 equals or exceeds the Retail Price Index (‘RPI’) +15% per annum. There is a sliding scale for lower
performance and no options are exercisable if the EPS growth rate is below RPI +5% per annum, is zero or negative. Details of the
performance criteria for options granted in 2005 are given on page 42 in the section ‘Remuneration policy’.

All share options granted to directors during the year, as shown in the table above, were granted under the 2003 Executive Share Scheme
A and the 2003 Executive Share Scheme B. Details for these share option schemes are included in note 17 to the financial statements.

During the year, in accordance with the provisions of the underwriting agreement between (amongst others) Citigroup Global Markets
U.K. Equity Ltd, Cazenove & Co. Ltd, SoundView Technology Corporation, the directors and the Company dated 16 October 2003
{the ‘Underwriting Agreement’), JRC Reid exercised 470,000 options from the First Executive Share Option Scheme, 180,000 options
from the Second Executive Share Option Scheme and 310,000 options from the EMI Share Option Scheme. The exercise prices were
as shown in the table opposite. The market price of the shares on the date of exercise was 305 pence per share.

During the year, also in accordance with the provisions of the Underwriting Agreement, JM Urwin exercised 348,600 options from the
First Executive Share Option Scheme and 180,000 options from the Second Executive Share Option Scheme. The exercise prices
were as shown in the table opposite. The market price of the shares on the date of exercise was 280 pence per share.

Prior to the Admission of the ordinary shares of the Company to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority in the year ended 31
December 2003, DJ Carey exercised 4,000 options (before the capital reorganisation) from the Second Executive Share Option
Scheme. The exercise prices were £20 and £15.

The aggregate gains (being the difference between the market price of the shares on the days on which the options were exercised
and the price actually paid for the shares) made by directors on the exercise of share options during the year amounted to £4.2 million
(approximately $7.7 million). The highest and lowest market prices of the Company’s shares during the year were 322 pence and 98.5
pence respectively. The market price at the year end was 144.5 pence.

Long term incentive schemes
There are no arrangements in place for long term incentive schemes.

This report was approved by the Board and is signed on its behalf by:

BM Rose
Remuneration Committee Chairman 21 February 2005
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

UK company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss for that year. In preparing those
financial statements, the directors are required to:

»w select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
»w make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group
will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Wolfson Microelectronics plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 72. We have also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Directors’ Remuneration Report. As described on page 48, this
includes responsibility for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting
standards. Our responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices
Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and by our profession's ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement on page 36 reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of
the 2003 FRC Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether
the board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the annual report, including the corporate governance statement and the un-audited part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the
implications for our report if we becocme aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited. it also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors
in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reascnable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. in
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion: the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2004 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended; and the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

KPMG Audit Plc 21 February 2005
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

Edinburgh
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Caonsclidated profit and loss account =7 .7 ey o= 0

Year endaed Year ended

31 December 31 December

2004 2003

Notes $000 $000

Turnover 2 149,284 75,735

Cost of sales {(60,530) (40,321)
Gross profit 58,764 35,414

Distribution and selling costs (13,479) (7,764)

Research and development expenses (15,911) 9,377)

Administrative expenses (12,622) (6,040)
Other operating income - 381
Operating profit 3 46,752 12,614
Interest receivable and similar income 6 1,218 317

interest payable and similar charges 7 (1,217) 415)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 16,753 12,516

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8 4,535 (3,280}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 21,288 9,236

Dividends

Retained profit for the year

Earnings per share

- basic

— diluted

The above resuits relate wholly to continuing activities.
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Balance sheets . .~

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2004 2003 2004 2003
Notes $000 $000 $000 $000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 28,900 23,689 29,880 23,657
Current assets
Stocks 12 17,964 8,859 17,864 8,859
Debtors 13 25,792 17,352 25,774 17,501
Cash at bank and in hand 44 232 46,474 44135 46,336
87,988 72,685 87,873 72,696
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (14,466) (14,698) (14,735) (14,677)
Net current assets 73,522 57,987 73,137 58,019
Total assets less current liabilities 103,422 81,676 103,017 81,676
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (18,170) (19,021) (18,170} (19,021)
Net assets 85,252 62,655 84,847 62,655
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 17 180 174 180 174
Share premium account 18 49,142 47,839 49,142 47,839
Capital redemption reserve 19 497 497 497 497
Profit and loss account 20 35,433 14,145 35,028 14,145
Total equity shareholders’ funds 85,252 62,655 84,847 62,655

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 21 February 2005 and were signed on its behalf by:

AD Milne
Director

GR Elliott
Director
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Consoclidated cash flow statement - -

Year ended Year ended
31 Becember 31 December
2084 2003
Note $320 $000
Reconciliation of operaling profil to net
cesh flow from operating activities
Operating profit 16,752 12,614
Depreciation charges 4,075 2,214
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (4) 41
Increase in stocks {9,1C5) (3,256)
Increase in debtors (1,928) (10,127)
Increase in creditors 200 3,554
Exchange adjustments (115) (238)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 10,514 4,802
Greup cash fiow statement
Net cash inflow from cperating activities 10,54 4,802
Return on investments and servicing of finance 23 84 (780)
Taxation paid (2,720) (19)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 23 (10,626} (21,451)
Equity dividends paid - (407)
Net cash outflow before financing (2,748) (17,855)
Financing 23 {7,204) 57,652
Exchange adjustment ay (233)
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (3,051) 39,564
Recenciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (8,051) 39,564
Cash outflow/(inflow) from decrease/increase in debt and lease financing 2,513 (18,854)
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows (538) 20,710
New finance lease and hire purchase contracts - (464)
(Decrease)/increase in net funds in the year (538) 20,246
Net funds at start of the year 25,120 4,430
Exchange adjustments (788) 444
Net funds at end of the year 23 23,795 25,120
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Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses and
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Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

A e e A T T mmm e mm e TN

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2084 2003

$000 $000

Profit for the financial year 21,288 9,236

Exchange adjustments ~ 316

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the financial year 21,288 9,552
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Year ended Year ended

31 Becember 31 December

2004 2003

Group $000 $000

Profit retained for equity sharehoiders 21,288 9,236

Proceeds from share issues, net of issue costs 1,309 39,364

Buy back of deferred shares - (566)

Exchange adjustments - 316

Net addition to shareholders’ funds 22,597 48,350

Opening shareholders’ funds 562,655 14,305

Closing shareholders’ funds 85,252 62,655
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Notes to the financial statements

1
Accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting
standards. The Company has followed the transitional arrangements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits’ in these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertaking made up to 31
December 2004. The acquisition method of accounting has been adopted. Under this method, the results of subsidiary undertakings
acquired or disposed of in the period are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the date of acquisition or up to
the date of disposal.

Under section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account.

Turnover
Turnover represents the amounts (excluding value added tax) derived from the provision of goods and services to customers.

Turnover from product sales is recognised in the profit and loss account upon sale to the end customer or, where the Company sells
to its distributors, on sale to the distributor where there are no further obligations on the Company, and when the associated economic
benefits are due to the Company and the turnover can be measured reliably.

Design income on specific contracts is recognised with respect to the stage of completion and the expected costs and time to
complete. Turnover is recognised in a manner appropriate to the stage of completion of the contract. Associated costs are written off
to the profit and loss account as incurred. Where turnover exceeds payments on account, an amount recoverable under contracts is
established and given within debtors. Where payments on account exceed turnover, a payment received on account is established
and given within creditors.

Rovyalty income represents revenue earned under joint product development agreements. Such revenue is earned and income is
recognised when sales of the developed product to third parties for which royalty is due are confirmed to the Company.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis in order to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets
over their estimated economic lives as follows:

Freehold property 25 years
Computer hardware and software 1 to 3 years
Plant and machinery 1to 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years

Land is not depreciated.

Leased assets

Tangible fixed assets which are acquired under finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts are capitalised at the market value
of the assets at the start of the lease, and are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated economic lives or the term of the lease.
Outstanding obligations under the leases, net of finance charges, are included as liabilities. Operating lease costs are charged to the
profit and loss account as incurred.

Government grants
Government grants receivable to assist the Company with revenue costs in respect of development work are offset against the related
costs in the profit and loss account.

054 : WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS PLC ANNUAL ‘REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2004




Notes to the financial statements

1
Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies
As reported last year, the functional currency of the Group is the US dollar and this is also the reporting currency.

Transactions in currencies other than the US dollar are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the US dollar are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account.

Stocks
Raw material stocks are vatued at the lower of purchase cost and net realisable value.

Contract work in progress is stated at costs incurred, less that transferred to the profit and loss account, after deducting foreseeable
losses and payments on account not matched with turnover.

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit or loss for the period and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. Deferred tax is recognised, without
discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes which
have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19.

Pensions

The Company operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. This scheme was closed to new entrants
with effect from 2 July 2002. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those in the Company. Contributions to the scheme
are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions over the anticipated average service lives of the
Company’s employees.

The Company also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund. The amount charged to the profit and loss account represents the contributions
payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period.

2
Turnover

Turnover is attributable to the design, manufacture and supply of high performance mixed-signal integrated circuits. All turnover and
profit before interest and tax originates in the UK.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
$000 $000

Turnover by geographical market
Japan 18,215 5,960
Asia Pacific (other than Japan) 86,072 63,459
Americas 6,738 2,131
Europe and rest of world 8,569 4,185
19,284 75,735
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Notes to the financial statements

3

Operating profit
Yezr ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
$089 $000
The operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 4,015 2,214
Operating lease costs
— plant and machinery 97 49
- other 545 212
Auditors’ remuneration
- statutory audit - Company and Group 187 64
Legal fees incurred in respect of alleged patent infringement (note 24) 4,089 692
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 41
and after crediting:
Government grants - (381)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets {4) -

Non audit fees payable to KPMG Audit Plc and its associates amounted to $284,000 (2003: $464,000) of which assurance services,
comprising mainly the interim review, amounted to $57,000 (2003: $419,000), services in relation to the branches of the company
overseas $82,000 and tax advisory services amounted to $151,000 (2003: $45,000). Included in the total non audit fees for assurance
services is $nil (2003: $345,000), in respect of the admission of the ordinary shares of the Company to the London Stock Exchange

in October 2003, was charged to the share premium account.

&
Directors’ remuneraticn and interests

information concerning directors’ remuneration, shareholdings, options and pensions is shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 42 to 47. No director had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract of significance in relation to

the Group’s business.
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Notes to the financial statements

5
Staff costs
Year ended Year ended
37 Dzcember 31 December
2004 2003
No. No.
Average number of employees of the Group, inciuding executive directors, by activity:
Design and development 91 66
Selling and distribution 76 49
Administration 22 13
189 128
$000 $000
Employee costs
Wages and salaries 12,112 8,586
Social security costs 1,168 824
Other pension costs 4522 358
14,279 9,768
®
Interes? receivable and similar income
Yeer ended Year ended
7 Cecember 31 December
2004 2003
$000 5000
Bank interest receivable 7,218 317
7
Interest payable and similar charges
Yeer endad Year ended
31 Dzcember 31 December
2004 2003
$020 $000
On bank overdraft and loans 1,198 398
Finance charges payable in respect of finance leases and hire purchase contracts 19 17
1,297 415
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Notes to the financial statements

3
Taxation

Analysis of (credit)/charge in year:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2004 2004 2003
$000 $080 $000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits for the year - 642
Adjustment in respect of previous years (642) -
Total current tax (credit)/charge (842) 642
Deferred tax (see note 13):
Net effect of timing differences 4,841 2,880
Adjustment in respect of previous years 326 (242)
5,167 2,638
Tax charge before exceptional item 4,525 3,280
Exceptional tax credit:
Current year (5,160) -
Adjustment in respect of previous year {3,900) -
(9,050} -
Tax (credit)/charge on profit on ordinary activities (4,535) 3,280

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year

The exceptional tax credit arises from the tax relief available to the company under recent legisiation within the Finance Act 2003
enabling the Company to obtain tax relief for the gains made on the exercise of share options by employees since the flotation of the
Company in October 2003. This resulted in a tax credit of $9,060,000 which has been disclosed as an exceptional item on the basis
of the size and nature of the amounts concerned and to give a fair presentation of the underlying tax charge. The directors believe the
current profitable trading of the Company supports their view that the related deferred tax asset should be recognised this year and
accordingly the full tax benefit has been refiected in 2004.

Factors that may affect future tax charges

There remain approximately 10 million similar share options, with exercise prices ranging from 15 pence to 75 pence, still to be
exercised and therefore there are likely to be further exceptional tax credits arising in future. it is not possibie to predict the timing of
the exercise of options which is dependent on the decisions of individual option hoiders.

Tax losses as at 31 December 2004 are estimated to amount to approximately $6.7 million and will be carried forward for utilisation
against trading profits in future years. A deferred tax asset is recognised in respect of these losses.
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8
Taxation {continued)

Notes to the financial statements

The current tax charge for the year is lower {2003: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 30% {2003: 30%). The

differences are explained below.

Year ended Year ended
31 Becember 31 December
2004 2003
$000 $000
Current tax reconciliation
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 16,753 12,516
Current tax at 30% (2003: 30%) 5,026 3,755
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 28 36
Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation - (80)
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances for the period 1,221 -
Other timing differences 118 13
Utilisation of tax losses (885) (2,812)
Research and development credit (336} (270)
Tax relief on share options (5,160) -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (642) -
Total current tax (credit) / charge (see above) (642) 642
2]
Earnings per share
2004 2003
Earnings Earnings
Earnings per share Earnings per share
$000 cents $600 cents
Profit for the financial year 21,288 9,236
Basic 21,288 19.85 9,236 12.01
Diluted 21,288 18.10 9,236 9.24
The weighted average number of shares used in each calculation is as follows:
2004 2003
Number of Number of
shares shares
For basic earnings per share ©07,262,248 76,876,773
Conversion of convertible preference shares - 15,299,782
Effect of share options 10,374,454 7,767,033
For diluted earnings per share 117,636,702 99,843,588

In calculating the diluted weighted number of shares, the fair value of ordinary shares (used in calculating the dilutive effect of share
options) has been estimated as a weighted average of the actual prices obtained in transactions in the ordinary shares of the Company
during the year in question.
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Notes to the financial statements

<Q
Tangible fixed assels
Computer

Freehold land Plant and hardware & Furniture Motor

and buildings machinery software and fittings vehicles Total
Group $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cost
At 1 January 2004 16,723 8,291 3,401 776 56 29,247
Additions 2,059 5,827 1,360 923 63 10,232
Disposals - - - - 34 {34)
At 31 December 2004 18,782 14,118 4,781 1,68¢ 85 39,445
Depreciation
At 1 January 2004 - 3,906 1,391 235 26 5,558
Charge for the year 279 2,193 1,385 141 17 4,015
Disposals - - - - (28) (28)
At 31 December 2024 279 6,099 2,778 376 15 9,545
Net book value
At 31 December 2304 18,503 8,019 1,985 1,323 70 29,200
At 31 December 2003 16,723 4,385 2,010 541 30 23,689
Company
Cost
At 1 January 2004 16,723 8,265 3,399 771 56 29,214
Additions 2,059 5,827 1,360 923 63 10,232
Disposals - - - - (34) (34)
AL 81 December 2024 18,782 14,092 4,759 1,694 85 39,412
Depreciation
At 1 January 2004 - 3,906 1,391 234 26 5,557
Charge for the year 279 2,184 1,383 140 17 4,003
Disposals - - - - (28) (28)
At 31 December 2004 279 5,080 2,774 374 15 9,532
Net bock value
A 31 December 2004 18,503 8,002 1,985 1,320 70 29,880
At 31 December 2003 16,723 4,359 2,008 537 30 23,657

Group and Company: Included in the total net book value of plant and machinery is $34,000 (2003: $78,000); in computer hardware and software
$309,000 (2003: $464,000); and in fixtures and fittings $4,000 (2003: $18,000} in respect of assets held under hire purchase contracts. Depreciation for
the year on these assets was $44,000 (2003: $28,000), $155,000 (2003: $102,000) and $14,000 (2003: $14,000) respectively.
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Notes to the financial stalements

19
Fixed asset investments

Shares in group undertakings

Company $
Cost
At beginning and end of year 163

The trading undertaking in which the Company owns an interest at the year end is as follows:

Class and
Country of Principal percentage
incorporation activity of shares held
Subsidiary undertaking
Wolfson Microelectronics, Inc. United States of America Sales agency 100%

12
Stocks
Group and Company

31 December 31 December
2004 2003
$000 $000
Raw materials 8,474 1,942
Work in progress 2,935 4,873
Finished goods 6,555 2,044
17,964 8,859
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Notes to the financial statements

13
Debtors
Group Company

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2004 2003 2304 2003
$000 $000 $009 $000
Trade debtors 16,201 13,684 16,201 13,684
Amounts recoverable on contracts 424 4486 424 446
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertaking - - - 158
Other debtors 793 1,624 793 1,624
Deferred tax asset 4,133 240 4,133 240
Corporation tax recoverable 2,720 - 2,720 -
Prepayments and accrued income 1,521 1,358 1,503 1,349
25,792 17,352 25,774 17,501

Deferred tax asset

$000

At 1 January 2004 240

Credit to profit and loss account for the year 3,883

At 31 December 2004 4,133
The elements of deferred taxation are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2004 2003

$000 $000

Difference between accumulated depreciation and capital altowances 1,977 225

Other timing differences 131 15

Tax losses 2,025 -

Deferred tax asset 4,133 240
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Notes to the financial statements

14
Creditors: due within one year
Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $000 $000 $000
Bank loans (note 15) 2,235 1,846 2,235 1,846
Trade creditors 8,830 7,404 8,830 7,404
Amounts due to subsidiary undertaking - - 338 -
Corporation tax payable - 642 - 642
Other taxes and social security 340 755 340 755
Obligations under finance leases and
hire purchase contacts 31 487 31 487
Accruals 3,030 3,564 2,962 3,543
14,466 14,698 14,736 14,677
15

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group and Company

31 December 31 December

2004 2003

$000 $000

Bank loans 18,170 18,862
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts - 159
18,170 19,021

Group and Company

31 December 31 December

2004 2003

Analysis of debt $000 $000
Debt can be analysed as falling due:

In one year or less, or on demand 2,266 2,333

Between one and two years 2,125 2,227

Between two and five years 2,874 3,733

fn more than five years . 13,171 13,061

20,436 21,354

A £3.5 million bank term loan (approximately $6.7 million) is repayable in instalments of £86,874 (approximately $166,000) per month.
Interest is payable monthly on a floating rate basis. The loan is secured by a bond and floating charge, registered 26 September 1988,
over the whole assets of the Company.

On 3 September 2003 the Company received a £9 million term loan (approximately $17.2 million) to fund the acquisition of an office
building. This loan is repayable over 20 years in instalments of £125,000 (approximately $239,000) per quarter commencing in
December 2005. Interest is payable annually at a rate of 1.5% over the bank’s base rate. The loan is secured by a floating charge and
standard security over the property.
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Notes to the financial statements

13

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than cne year {continuead)
\ ¢

The maturity of obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, included above, is as follows:

Group and Company

31 December 31 December

2004 2003

$000 $000

Within one year 37 487
In the second to fifth years - 159
31 646

A
[0

Cezpital and [ease commithents

Commitments under operating leases payable in the next year are as follows:

317 December 2004

31 December 2003

Cther Other

Progarty ieases Property teases
Group $03C $000 $000 $000
On leases which expire within one year 178 °] 1 3
On leases which expire in two to five years 253 47 357 43
437 56 358 46

31 Decembar 2084 31 December 2003

QCther Other
Property leases Property leases
Company $0300 $000 $000 $000
On leases which expire within one year 155 ] 1 3
On leases which expire in two to five years 47 311 43
373 56 312 46

There were $147,000 of capital commitments at the end of the financial year for which no provision has been made (2003: $2,777,000).
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Notes to the financial statemenis

17
Share cepital
At 31 December 2004 . At 31 December 2003
No. $000 No. $000
Authorised
Equity shares:
Ordinary shares of 0.1p each 125,000,000 209 125,000,000 209
Allotted, called up and fuily paid
Equity shares:
Ordinary shares of 0.1p each 108,382,915 180 104,699,315 174

During the year 3,690,600 ordinary shares of 0.1p, which had an aggregate nominal value of £4,000 ($6,000), were issued for a total

consideration of £577,000 ($1,070,000).

Options

The Company'’s directors and employees have been granted options over ordinary shares under employee share option schemes as follows:

At 1 January Exercised Granted Lapsed At 31 Dzcembar

2004 2304

First scheme 2,756,600 (2,101,600) - - 655,000
Second scheme * 8,192,500 (698,000) - (771,000) 8,723,5C0
EMI scheme * 4,892,900 (891,000) - (10,000) 3,891,8C0
2003 Executive Share Scheme - A - - 108,778 - 108,778
2003 Executive Share Scheme - B - - 484,132 - 484,732
2003 All Employee Share Scheme - A - - 766,007 (20,000) 745,007
2003 All Employee Share Scheme - B - - 289,993 - 282,993
15,842,000 (3,690,600) 1,648,910 (801,000) 12,989,370

* At 31 December 2004, 2,026,000 options are subject to parallef option arrangements whereby 1,013,000 options granted under the EMl and Secand Executive schemes were
granted on the basis that option holders may exercise one of the options comprising such parallel arrangements but not both.
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17
Share capital (continued)

Options {continued)

NMumber of Exercise Date from
Date of oplions as at Price which Expiry
grant 34 December (pence) exercisable date

2004

First Executive Share Option Scheme 05.09.97 18,000 29 05.08.00 05.09.07
17.12.99 230,000 15 17.12.02 17.12.08
03.01.00 180,000 15 03.01.08 03.01.10
07.09.00 142,000 19 07.09.08 07.09.10
23.03.01 75,000 15 23.03.04 23.03.11
Second Executive Share Option Scheme *17.12.99 73¢,000 15 17.12.02 17.12.06
* 03.01.00 10,000 15 03.01.08 03.01.07
* (7.09.00 273,000 19 07.09.03 07.08.07
02.03.01 50,000 15 02.03.04 02.03.08
28.09.01 50,000 15 28.09.04 28.09.08
20.03.02 1,520,000 20 20.03.05 20.03.08
12.06.02 145,000 20 12.06.05 12.06.08
01.01.03 758,000 40 01.01.06 01.01.10
25.04.03 525,000 40 25.04.06 25.04.10
14.08.03 2,637,500 75 14.08.06 14.08.10
17.09.03 25,000 75 17.09.06 17.09.10
Enterprise Management Incentive Scheme * 23.08.01 1,534,400 15 23.03.04 23.03.11
20.03.02 1,355,000 20 20.03.05 20.03.12
03.06.03 155,000 40 03.06.06 03.06.13
14.08.03 847,500 75 14.08.06 14.08.13
2003 All Employee Share Scheme ‘A’ ** 30.07.04 726,007 204.5 - 30.07.14
** 27.08.04 20,000 188 - 27.08.14
2003 All Employee Share Scheme ‘B’ * 30.07.04 289,093 204.5 - 30.07.14
2003 Executive Share Scheme ‘A’ 30.07.04 108,778 204.5 31.03.07 30.07.14
2003 Executive Share Scheme ‘B’ 30.07.04 484,132 204.5 31.03.07 30.07.14

12,880,310

* At 31 December 2004, there are 2,026,000 options which are subject to parallel option arrangements whereby 1,013,000 options granted under the EMI and Second Executive
Schemes were granted on the basis that option holders may excercise one of the options comprising such paraliel arrangements but not both.

** 25% of options can be exercised one year after the grant date and then monthly thereafter for the next three years.
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18
Share premium accoumnt

Group and Company

$030
At beginning of year 47,839
Premium on shares issued 1,084
Adjustment to expenses of share issue in previous year 23¢
At end of year ’ 49,742

12
Capital redemption reserve

Group and Company

$600

At beginning and at end of year 487
20

rofit and loss account

Group Company

$000 $3800

At beginning of year 14,145 14,145

Retained profit for the financial year 21,288 20,883

At end of year 35,433 35,028

The profit for the year attributable to shareholders dealt with in the accounts of the Company was $20,883,000 (2003: $9,236,000).

29
Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents contributions payable
by the Company to the scheme and amounted to $219,000 (2003: $65,000). Contributions amounting to $25,000 were payable to the
scheme and are included within creditors at 31 December 2004 (2003: $10,000).

The Company also operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, contributions being charged to the
profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the Company. This scheme is closed
to new entrants. The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit
method. The most recent valuation was at 2 January 2004. The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of
the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on investments (7.75% p.a. pre retirement, 5.75% p.a. post retirement) and the
rates of increase in salaries (5% p.a.) and the mortality table assumptions.

The most recent actuarial valuation showed that the value of the scheme’s assets was £3,063,000 ($5,425,000) at 2 January 2004.
This represented 65% of the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future increases in earnings. The
contributions of the Company from 1 January 2004 have increased t¢ 12.7% (2003: 7.6%) and the contributions from employees
remain at 6% of earnings.

The pension charge for the year in respect of the defined benefit scheme amounted to $780,000 (2003: $293,000) and at 31 December
2004 there is an accrual of $418,000 (2003: $nil).
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Pansicns {continusd)

Whilst the Company continues to account for pension costs in accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
‘Accounting for Pensions Costs’, under FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits’ the following transitional disclosures are required:

The most recent full actuarial valuation was as at 2 January 2004. The actuary has estimated the liabilities of the scheme as at 31
December 2004, to take account of the requirements of FRS 17, based on this valuation. The actuary has estimated the liabilities of
the scheme as at 31 December 2003, and 2002, to take account of the requirements of FRS17, based on the full actuarial valuation
as at 2 January 2001. Scheme assets are stated at their market value at 31 December 2004, 2003 and 2002. The major financial
assumptions used to calculate scheme liabilities under FRS 17 are:

3% Becember 31 December 31 December

2004 2003 2002

Valuation method Projected unit Projected unit Projected unit

Rate of increase in salaries 4.25% 4.25% 4.25%

Rate of increase of pensions accrued pre 2 July 2002 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of revaluation of deferred pensions in excess of the

guaranteed minimum pension 2.50% 2.90% 2.50%

Discount rate applied to scheme liabilities 5.25% 5.37% 5.75%

Inflation assumption 2.50% 2.90% 2.50%

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to
the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice. As the scheme is closed to new members, under the projected
unit method the current service cost will increase as the members of the scheme approach retirement.

Scheme assets

The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant change
before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections over iong
periods and thus inherently uncertain, were:

Long term Long term Long term

rete of return rate of return rate of return
exgeclted at Yalue at expected at Value at expected at Value at
1 December * Secemer 31 December 31 December 3t December 31 December
2304 2334 2003 2003 2002 2002
$530 $000 $000
Equities 7.5% 7,077 7.5% 5,389 7.5% 3,674
Other 4.0% 69 4.0% 11 4.0% 84
Total market value of assets 7,146 5,400 3,758
Present value of scheme liabilities {14,87%) (10,571) (6,396)
Deficit in the scheme {7,833) (6,171 (2,638)
Related deferred tax asset 2,350 1,551 791
Net pension liability (5,483) (3,620) (1,847}

—— ———

The amount of this net pension liability would have a consequential effect on reserves.
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Pensions (continued)

Movement in deficit during the year:

Deficit in scheme at beginning of year
Current service cost

Contributions paid

Other finance cost

Actuarial loss

Exchange adjustment

Deficit in the scheme at end of year

Notes o the financial statements

Vear encded Year ended
31 Decembar 31 December
2034 2003

£330 $000
(5,171) (2,638)
(504) (489)

362 293

(168) (102)
(1,817) {1,943)
(535) (292)
(7,833) 5,171)

= o ———"

Yezr ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2304 2003

Analysis of other pension costs charged in arriving at operating profit ge $000

Current service cost 504 489

Year enced Year ended

31 Decembar 31 December

2004 2003

Analysis of amounts included in other finance costs €300 $000

Expected return on pension scheme assets 431 294

Interest on pension scheme liabilities (589) (396)

(158) (102)

Year encded Year ended Year ended

. . . 31 Becember 31 December 31 December

Analysis of a.mount.recognlsed in statement of 2004 2003 2002

total recognised gains and losses %  $08C %  $000 %  $000

Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 351 538 (1,449)
Percentage of year end scheme assets 4.9 10.0 38.6

Experience gains and losses arising on scheme liabilities (533) (1,303) (190)
Percentage of present value of year end scheme liabilities 3.8 123 3.0

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value

of scheme liabilities (1,635) (1,178) (182)
Percentage of present value of year end scheme liabilities 10.9 111 2.8

Actuarial loss recognised in statement of total recognised (1,817) (1,943) {1,821)

gains and losses

ey
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22
Finzncial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash on short term deposits and held in current accounts and liquid
resources, and various items such as trade debtors and trade creditors which arise directly from the Group's operations.

The main purpose of the financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk. The Group’s policy is to manage liguidity risk by maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
thrdugh the use of bank loans, finance leases and hire purchase contracts.

All the Group’s borrowings and cash and deposit balances were subject to floating interest rate agreements. At 31 December 2004,
the term loan balance of '$3,162,000 carries a margin of 1.5% over UK LIBOR rate. The term loan batance of $17,243,000 carries a
margin of 1.5% over the bank’s base rate. There are no loans which carry capped or fixed interest rates. The maturity profile of the
Group's financial liabilities are shown in note 15. The Group's finance feases and hire purchase contracts of $31,000 (2003: $646,000)
generally carry fixed interest rates.

Where cash and deposits are placed on short term maturities, the relevant local bank deposit rate of interest for the maturity and
currency concerned is obtained and as the maturity is less than one year, they are classified as floating rate financial instruments.

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are summarised below.

31 December 31 December
2004 2003
C00 $000
Financial assets
Sterling cash deposits 8,460 36,071
Other Sterling monetary assets 3,689 2,349
US dollar cash deposits 33,618 9,763
Other US dollar monetary assets ©7,584 14,716
Other currencies (cash deposits) 2,154 640
Other currencies (other monetary assets) 386 47
Total financiat assets 65,891 63,586
Financial liabilities
Sterling borrowings (20,405) (20,708)
Other Sterling monetary liabilities (3,775) (6,627}
US dollar monetary liabilities (8,162) (5,979}
Other currencies (monetary liabilities) (2584) (405)
Total financial liabilities {32,603) (33,719)

For all debt, short term assets and liabilities the book values and fair values are the same. The Group does have foreign currency exposure
but has not entered into any derivatives or other forward exchange contracts as at 31 December 2004 or at any other period end dates.
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Notes to cash flow statement

Analysis of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Yeer ended Year ended
31 BDecember 31 December
2304 2003
fsideie] $000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 1,320 215
Interest paid 1,216) (379)
Interest element of finance lease payments (20) a7
Dividends paid on non-equity shares - (599)
84 (780)
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {10,536} (21,457)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 70 -
(1C,5626) (21,451)
Financing
Proceeds of share capital issues, net of expenses 1,309 39,364
Buy back of deferred shares - (566)
Bank term loan received - 20,367
Bank term loan repayment {1,828) {(1,380)
Capital element of finance lease payments (615) (133)
{1,204) 57,652
Analysis of changes in net funds
Other
At 1 January non-cash Exchange At 31 December
2004 Cash flows changes adjustments 2004
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash at bank 46,474 (3,051) - 809 44,232
Bank term loans {20,708) 1,898 - (1,595) {20,405)
Finance lease and hire purchase
contracts (646) 615 - - (31)
25,120 (538) - (786) 23,796

WOLFSON MICROELECTRONICS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2004 : 071




Notes to the financial statements

24

Contingent liabilities

On 9 October 2003, Cirrus Logic, Inc. (‘Cirrus’), a US corporation which competes with the Company in the audio market, filed a suit
against Wolfson Microelectronics plc and Wolfson Microelectronics, Inc. claiming infringement of two of its US patents, US Patent No
6,492,928 (the ‘928 patent) and US Patent No 6,011,501 (the '501 patent). That action is pending in the District Court of Southern

California in San Diego.

Shortly afterwards Cirrus filed a complaint with the US International Trade Commission (ITC’) in Washington D.C., claiming
infringement of the same patents and seeking a ban on importation into the USA of a number of the Company’s products and on the
products of third parties that include those products of the Company.

The ITC investigation terminated on 11 February 2005 when the ITC issued its final determination. The ITC determined that Cirrus’
‘928 patent was unenforceable due to inequitable conduct. Therefore no ban on importation was issued.

The ITC alsc found that the ‘501 patent was infringed and issued a limited exclusion order preventing the Company from importing
the affected products into the US. The order does not extend to third party end products that incorporate the Company’s products.
The exclusion order has no business impact on the Company since, in early 2004, the Company made obsolete two of the three parts
that had been accused under the ‘501 patent and modified the third to remove the disputed feature.

The District Court proceedings were stayed during the ITC proceedings. They are now continuing and are expected to take some time
to conclude. The Company and Wolfson Microelectronics, Inc. have counterclaimed against Cirrus in the District Court proceedings.
The counterclaims are for: (1) declarations that the Cirrus patents are not infringed by the Company, are invalid, and are unenforceable;
(2) unfair competition under state common law and statutory law; (3) unfair competition under the Federal Lanham Act; (4) tortious
interference with the Company’s prospective economic advantages with customers and others; and (5) tortious interference with the
Company’s existing contracts with its customers and cthers.

The ITC’s decision is not binding on the District Court and the Company continues vigorously to defend itself against all Cirrus’
allegations. The Company does not believe that the District Court proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its business and
consequently it does not anticipate making a provision in its accounts for them.
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section [ﬂ'ee annual report] =

Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
TIDM WLF

Headline Schedule 11

Released 12:16 06-Apr-05

Number 6981K

RNS Number:6981K

Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

06 April 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

Reobert Laurence Eckelmann

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

Robert Laurence Eckelmann

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Purchase of shares

7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
15,000 ordinary shares

8. Percentage of issued class

0.01%

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed

N/A

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 06/04/2005



11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share
US$ 2.93 / share
13. Date of transaction

4th April 2005

14. Date company informed

6th April 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
15,000

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant

N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable

N/A

18. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which cptions held following this
notification

N/A

23. Any additional information

N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries

Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 06/04/2005



25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
6th April 2005

This information is provided by RNS

The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
END

©2004 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section (Free annual report ] o
Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

TIDM WLF

Headline Director Dealings

Released 16:40 25-Feb-05

Number 0753J

RNS Number:0753J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

Wolfson Microelectronics plc
Director Dealings

Wolfson Microelectronics ("Wolfson" or "the Company") (LSE: WLF), announces that
the executive directors are exercising share options as well as selling part of
their shareholdings.

This is the first time David Milne, Chief Executive and George Elliott, Finance
Director, have sold any shares in the Company since flotation even though the
lock-in period ended in July 2004. No executive director sold any shares at the
time of the flotation. Jim Reid and John Urwin exercised share options and sold
shares last year as part of special dispensation given to them from the time of
the flotation.

After all the transactions of today, the executive directors continue to hold
4.71% of the Company. Individual shareholdings are as follows:

Executive Number of ordinary shares Percentage of issued share capital of
Director held at 25 February 2005 the Company at 25 February 2005

A D Milne 2,568,123 2.37%

JRC Reid 1,610,300 1.49%

J M Urwin 521,703 0.48%

G R Elliott 399,523 0.37%

TOTAL 5,099,649 4.71%

Enquiries:

Harry Chathli 020 7645 2990

Corfin Communications

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
END

©2004 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Go to market news section [Free annual repor‘[] H o
Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

TIDM WLF

Headline Director Shareholding

Released 16:23 25-Feb-05

Number 0721J

RNS Number:0721J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS
1. Name of company
Wolfson Microelectronics plc
2. Name of director
James R C Reid
3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

James R C Reid
5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(sg) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Exercise of options

7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
120,000

8. Percentage of issued class

0.11%

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
N/A

10. Percentage of issued class

N/A

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005




11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

£0.15/ share

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
1,910,300

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
1.76%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant
N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable
N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option
N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A
23. Any additional information
N/A&

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
25 February 2005

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005




This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

©2004 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section [Free annhual repoﬁ] = o
Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

TIDM WLF

Headline Director Shareholding

Released 16:24 25-Feb-05

Number 0724J

RNS Number:0724J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

James R C Reid

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's

spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

James R C Reid
5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Sale of shares
7. Number of shares / amount of stock acguired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class
N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
300,000
10. Percentage of issued class

0.28%

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005




11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

£1.64 / share

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14, Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
1,610,300

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
1.49%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant
N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable
N/A

13. Total amount paid {if any) for grant of the option
N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A
23. Any additional information
N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Fiona Murdoch -~ 0131 272 7000

25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification
Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
25 February 2005

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section ) [Free annual report] & &
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Number 0727J

RNS Number:0727J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

John M Urwin

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

John M Urwin
5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Sale of shares
7. Number of shares / amount of stock acguired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class
N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed

210,000
10. Percentage of issued class

0.19%
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11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

£1.64 / share

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
521,703

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
0.48%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following bexes.

17. Date of grant
N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable
N/A&

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option
N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exerxcise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A
23. Any additional information
N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
25 February 2005

http://www londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005



This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

©2004 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005



Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section [Free annual r'enw == &
Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC

TIDM WLF

Headline Director Shareholding

Released 16:27 25-Feb-05

Number 0730J

RNS Number:0730J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11
NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS
1. Name of company
Wolfson Microelectronics plc
2. Name of director
John M Urwin
3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's

spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

John M Urwin

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)
N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretiocnary/non discretionary

Exercise of options
7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
271,400

8. Percentage of issued class
0.25%

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
N/A
10. Percentage of issued class

N/A
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11. Class of security

Ordinary 'ﬁ;ﬁle_)‘ ”j:f?
12. Price per share &4y ED L A
£0.15 / share >§;t;;:1'i ‘_
13. Date of transaction |

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification

731,703

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
0.68%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant
N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable
N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option
N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A
23. Any additional information
N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
25 February 2005
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RNS Number:0706J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

Alastair David Milne

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect ¢of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

Alastair David Milne
5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person{s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Exercise of options

7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
460,000

8. Percentage of issued class

0.42%

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed

N/A
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10. Percentage of issued class

N/A

11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

£0.15/ share

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
3,524,523

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
3.25%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant

N/A&

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable

N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the opticn

N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A

23. Any additional information

N/A

24, Name of contact and telephone number for gqueries

Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000
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25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch
Date of Notification

25 February 2005

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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RNS Number:0707J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

Alastair David Milne

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's

spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

Alastair David Milne

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)
N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Sale of shares
7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class
N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
626,400

10. Percentage of issued class
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0.58%

11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

£1.64 / share

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
2,898,123

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
2.67%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant

N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable

N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A

23. Any additional information

N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries

Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000
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25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch
Date of Notification

25 February 2005

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
END :
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RNS Number:0709J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

Alastair David Milne

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4., Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

Alastair David Milne
5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Gift of shares
7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class
N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
330,000
10. Percentage of issued class

0.3%
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11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

Nil consideration

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
2,568,123

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
2.37%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant
N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable
N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option
N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A
23. Any additional information
N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
25 February 2005
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This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
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Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

George R Elliott

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect ¢of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's

spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

George R Elliott

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)
N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Exercise of options

7. Number of shares / amount of stock acgquired
600,000

8. Percentage of issued class

0.55%

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed

N/A
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10. Percentage of issued class

N/A

11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

410,000 at £0.15/ share and 190,000 at £0.15 /share
13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
609,523

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
0.56%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant

N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable

N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A

23. Any additional information

N/A

24, Name of contact and telephone number for queries

Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000
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25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch
Date of Notification
25 February 2005
This information is provided by RNS

The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
END
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Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
25 February 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

George R Elliott

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's

spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

George R Elliott

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)
N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Sale of shares
7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class
N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
210,000
10. Percentage of issued class

0.19%
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11. Class of security

Ordinary

12. Price per share

£1.64 / share

13. Date of transaction

25 February 2005

14. Date company informed

25 February 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
399,523

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
0.37%

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant
N/A

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable
N/A

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option
N/A

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
N/A

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

N/A

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

N/A
23. Any additional information
N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries
Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

25, Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch

Date of Notification
25 February 2005
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This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
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Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
01 March 2005

Wolfson Press Announcement of s.198 Notification

Wolfson Microelectronics plc (the "Company")
1 March 2005

Section 198 Notification
The Company was notified on 28 February 2005 by Morgan Stanley Securities
Limited (''MSSL"), pursuant to s.198 Companies Act 1985, that its interest in

the Company is below 3% of the issued share capital of the Company. MSSL is a
member of the Morgan Stanley group of companies.

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
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SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

George R Elliott

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4., Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

George R Elliott

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected person(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Grant of options

7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class

N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed

N/A
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10. Percentage of issued class

N/A

11. Class of security

N/&

12. Price per share

N/A

13. Date of transaction

10 March 2005

14. Date company informed

10 March 2005

15. Total heolding following this notification
N/A

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
N/A

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant

10 March 2005

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable

10 March 2008

19. Total amount paid {if any) for grant of the option

Nil

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
69,264 ordinary shares

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

173.25 pence

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

477,557

23. Any additional information

N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for queries

Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000
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25. Name and signature of authorised company official responsible for making
this notification

Fiona Murdoch
Date of Notification

11 March 2005

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

©2004 London Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 05/04/2005




Regulatory Announcement

YT NI I
Go to market news section T e [Free annual report] o
Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC AP T A TR
TIDM WLF
Headline Schedule 11
Released 09:.06 11-Mar-05
Number 6305J

RNS Number:6305J
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
11 March 2005

SCHEDULE 11

NOTIFICATION OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTCRS AND CONNECTED PERSONS

1. Name of company

Wolfson Microelectronics plc

2. Name of director

John M Urwin

3. Please state whether notification indicates that it is in respect of holding
of the shareholder named in 2 above or in respect of a non-beneficial interest
or in the case of an individual holder if it is a holding of that person's
spouse or children under the age of 18 or in respect of a non-beneficial
interest.

Notification is in respect of holding of Shareholder named above

4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, if more than one holder, the number of
shares held by each of them (if notified)

John M Urwin

5. Please state whether notification relates to a person(s) connected with the
director named in 2 above and identify the connected perscn(s)

N/A

6. Please state the nature of the transaction. For PEP transactions please
indicate whether general/single co PEP and if discretionary/non discretionary

Grant of options

7. Number of shares / amount of stock acquired
N/A

8. Percentage of issued class

N/A

9. Number of shares/amount of stock disposed
N/A

10. Percentage of issued class
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N/A

11. Class of security

N/&a

12. Price per share

N/A

13. Date of transaction

10 March 2005

14. Date company informed

10 March 2005

15. Total holding following this notification
N/A

16. Total percentage holding of issued class following this notification
N/A

If a director has been granted options by the company please complete the
following boxes.

17. Date of grant

10 March 2005

18. Period during which or date on which exercisable

10 March 2008

19. Total amount paid (if any) for grant of the option

Nil

20. Description of shares or debentures involved: class, number
66,378 ordinary shares

21. Exercise price (if fixed at time of grant) or indication that price is to be
fixed at time of exercise

173.25 pence

22. Total number of shares or debentures over which options held following this
notification

- 759,559

23. Any additional information

N/A

24. Name of contact and telephone number for gueries
Fiona Murdoch - 0131 272 7000

25. Name and signature of authorised company cfficial responsible for making
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this notification
Fiona Murdoch
Date of Notification

11 March 2005

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

©2004 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC R

TIDM WLF ] I

Headline AGMNotice  CORFUL L g

Released 16:30 22-Mar-05 '

Number 0863K

RNS Number:0863K
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
22 March 2005

Immediate Release

Wolfson Microelectronics plc
22 March 2005

‘Wolfson Microelectronics plc
AGM NOTICE

Copies ¢f the Wolfson Microelectronics plc Notice of Annual General Meeting 2005
have been submitted to the UK Listing Authority and will shortly be available
for inspection at the Document Viewing Facility of The Financial Services
Authority, 25 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London El14 S5HS.

Engquiries:

Corfin Communications . 020 7929 8999
Neil Thapar

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

@2004 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Company Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
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Headline Settiement of Litigation

Released 14:00 24-Mar-05

Number 2016K

RNS Number:2016K
Wolfson Microelectronics PLC
24 March 2005

Wolfson Micrcelectronics plc
24 March 2005

Cirrus Logic and Wolfson Microelectronics Settle Litigation

Edinburgh, Scotland - 24 March 2005: Cirrus Logic Inc. (NASDAQ: CRUS) and
Wolfson Microelectronics plc (LSE: WLF.L) today announce that they have settled
all outstanding litigation between the Companies.

In October 2003, Cirrus Logic brought suit against Wolfson Microelectronics plc
and its subsidiary Wolfson Microelectronics, Inc. in the U.S. District Court in
San Diego for patent infringement. Cirrus Logic subsequently initiated an
investigation by the United States International Trade Commission (ITC), which
terminated in February 2005.

Under a settlement agreement, the parties have agreed to withdraw all
outstanding claims and counterclaims in the US District Court proceedings. An
application is being made to the ITC for the withdrawal of the exclusion order
that the ITC issued in February 2005 in relation to one of the Cirrus Logic

patents.

The terms of the settlement are confidential.
Enguiries:

Corfin Communications +44 (0)20 7929 8989
Harry Chathli, Neil Thapar

About Wolfson Microelectronics

Wolfson Microelectronics plc (LSE: WLF.L) is an award winning, fabless
semiconductor company based in Edinburgh, UK. Wolfson develops and markets high
performance mixed signal semiconductors for multimedia and communications
applications worldwide. The company currently has sales offices in the USa,
Japan, China, Taiwan and Korea.

For more information contact:
Wolfson Microelectronics plc, Westfield House, 26 Westfield Road, Edinburgh,

EH11 2QB, United Kingdom, Tel: +44 (0) 131 272 7000, Fax: +44 (0) 131 272 7001.
Web: www.wolfsonmicro.com

- ENDS -
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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

It contains the resolutions to be voted on at the Company’s Annual General Meeting to be held on 21 April
2005. If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you are recommended to seek your own
personal financial advice from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent
financial adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the Company, please
forward this document and the form of proxy for use in relation to the Annual General Meeting of the Company
as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the
sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee. If you have sold or otherwise
transferred some of your ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the Company, you should consult with the
stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected.

The Annual General Meeting starts at 11.00 a.m. on 21 April 2005. However, the doors to the meeting will
be open from 10.30 a.m. and you may wish to arrive by 10.45 a.m. to take your seat in good time for the
start of the meeting.

Please see the attached explanatory notes for further details on the resolutions to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

Wolfson Microelectronics plc
(Incorporated and registered in Scotland with no. SC 089839)

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Wolfson Microelectronics pic (the “Company”)
will be held at Westfield House, 26 Westfield Road, Edinburgh, EH11 2QB on 21 April 2005 at 11.00 a.m. for the
transaction of the following business:

Ordinary Resolutions

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass Resolutions 1 to 10 (inclusive) as ordinary resolutions of the Company:

Resolution 1

To receive the accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2004, together with the
directors’ report, the directors’ remuneration report and the auditors’ report on those accounts and that part of
the directors’ remuneration report which is required to be audited.

Resolution 2

To approve the directors’ remuneration report as set out in the Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year
ended 31 December 2004.

Resolution 3

To re-elect David John Carey as a director of the Company.

Resolution 4

To re-elect James Robert Craig Reid as a director of the Company.

Resolution 5

To re-elect John Martin Urwin as a director of the Company. S : « AN
Resolution 6 L
To re-elect George Reginald Elliott as a director of the Company. Y e
; _,} O o ~— \
- e



Resolution 12

That the Company is generally and unconditionally hereby authorised to make market purchases (within the
meaning of section 163(3) of the Act) of any of its ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each (“ordinary shares”} on such
terms and in such manner as the directors of the Company may from time to time determine provided that:

(@)

(i)

(i)

the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 10,984,131 representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 10 March 2005;

the minimum price which may be paid for any such ordinary share is 0.1 pence, exclusive of the expenses
of purchase (if any) payable by the Company;

the maximum price, exclusive of the expenses of purchase (if any) payable by the Company, which may
be paid for any such ordinary share under this authority is an amount equal to 105% of the average of
the middle market closing quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the Daily Official List of the
London Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the day of purchase; and

unless previously renewed, revoked or varied, the authority hereby conferred shall expire on the earlier of
15 months after the passing of this Resolution or at the conclusion of the Annual Genera! Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2008, but a contract for purchase may be made before such expiry which will or
may be executed wholly or partly thereafter, and a purchase of ordinary shares may be made in pursuant
of any such contract.

Resolution 13

That, subject to sections 18 and 20 of the Companies (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004

coming

(i)

(i
“145

145.

into force, the Articles be amended as follows:

That a new definition be inserted in Article 2 after the definition of “these Articles” but prior to the
definition of “Auditor”:

““Associated Company” means a company which is the Company’s subsidiary, or the Company’s
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company;”

That Article 145 be deleted in its entirety and be replaced with the following:

Indemnity

1 Subject to the provisions of the Act, but without prejudice to any indemnity to which a Director may
otherwise be entitled, every person who is or was at any time a Director or director of an Associated
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability attaching to him
in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him in relation to the
Company, provided that no such indemnity is (directly or indirectly) provided against any liability
incurred by the director:

(a) to the Company or to any Associated Company;
(b) to pay:
(i) a fine imposed in criminal proceedings; or

(i) a sum payable to a regulatory authority by way of a penalty in respect of non-compliance with
any requirement of a regulatory nature (however arising);

(c) inrelation to a decision which has become final (in accordance with sections 309B (5) to (7) of the Act):
(i) in defending any criminal proceedings in which he is convicted; or

(i) in defending any civil proceedings brought by the Company or an Associated Company in which
judgment is given against him; or

(i) in connection with any application under any of the following provisions in which the court
refuses to grant him relief:

(A) section 144(3) or (4) of the Act; or
(B) section 727 of the Act.



Notes

1.

2.

4.

Only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company as at 6.00 p.m. on 19 April
2005 shall be entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting in respect of the number of shares
registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the relevant register of securities after 6.00 p.m.
on 19 April 2005 shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at this Annual
General Meeting.

Any shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and, on a poll, vote on his or her behalf. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.
Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a shareholder from attending and voting at this
Annual General Meeting.

A form of proxy is enclosed which to be effective must be completed and received by the Company’s
registrars, Lioyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA, not later than 11.00
a.m. on 19 April 2005.

The following documents are available for inspection on any day (except Saturday, Sunday and Bank
Holidays) up to and including the date of this Annual General Meeting during usual business hours at the
registered office of the Company and at the offices of Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and Dorr LLP, Alder Castle,
10 Noble Street, London EC2V 7QJ and will, on the date of this Annual General Meeting, be available for
inspection at the meeting from 10.45 a.m. until the conclusion of the meeting:

(i) the register of interests of directors (and their family interests) in the share capital of the Company;

(i) copies of all the service agreements and letters of appointment between the directors of the Company
and the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.



Authority to allot ordinary shares for cash (Resolution 11)

Under section 89 of the Companies Act 1985, if the directors wish to allot any of the unissued ordinary shares for
cash they must in the first instance offer them to existing ordinary shareholders in proportion to their ordinary
shareholding. There may be occasions, however, when the directors will need the flexibility to finance business
opportunities by the issue of ordinary shares without a pre-emptive offer to existing ordinary shareholders.
Shareholders last granted authority to the directors to disapply pre-emptive rights at the Annual General Meeting
in 2004. Such authority will expire at the end of this Annual General Meeting and Resolution 11 seeks to renew it.

Resolution 11 imposes a limit of approximately 3.2% of the issued ordinary share capital as at 10 March 2005 on
the issue of new shares and the sale of any treasury shares without first offering them to existing ordinary
shareholders. Resolution 11 also seeks a disapplication of the pre-emption rights on a rights issue {(or other pre-
emptive type issue) so as so allow the directors to make exclusions or such other arrangements as may be
appropriate to resolve legal or practical problems which, for example, might arise with overseas ordinary
shareholders. This authority will expire on the earlier of 15 months after the passing of the resolution or on the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2006.

The directors have no present intention of using the authority proposed to be granted by Resolution 11,

Authority to purchase Company’s own shares (Resolution 12)

In certain circumstances, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, it may be advantageous for the
Company to purchase its own shares and Resolution 12 seeks authority from shareholders to do so up to a limit
of approximately 10% of the issued share capital. Shareholders granted the directors authority for the Company
to purchase its own shares, up to a limit of approximately 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, at the
Annual General Meeting in 2004. Such authority will expire at the end of this Annual General Meeting. Resolution
12 seeks to renew and extend such authority up to a limit of approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company, to give the Company flexibility to purchase its own shares.

The directors intend to exercise this power only when, in the light of market conditions prevailing at the time, they
believe that the effect of such purchases will be to increase earnings per share and is in the best interest of
shareholders generally. Other investment opportunities, appropriate gearing levels and the overall position of the
Company will be taken into account before deciding upon this course of action.

If the Company buys back any of its shares, the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by The Companies
(Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 {the “Treasury Shares Regulations™)) allows the
Company to have the choice of holding such shares in treasury (up to a limit of 10% of the issued share capital)
or to cancel them or a combination of both. The Company has the option to resell for cash, transfer or cancel any
treasury shares.

The directors believe it is advantageous for the Company to have this choice and the directors would consider
holding any shares repurchased pursuant to Resolution 12 as treasury shares. The directors further believe that
the holding of treasury shares will provide the Company with increased flexibility in managing its share capital.
No voting rights would be exercised, or dividends paid, in respect of any treasury shares.

The authority sought by Resolution 12 will expire on the earlier of 15 months after the passing of the Resolution
or the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held in 2006. The directors intend to seek
renewal of this power at subseguent Annual General Meetings.

As at 10 March 2005, there were options over 11,656,919 ordinary shares representing 10.6% of the then issued
share capital of the Company. If the authority sought by Resolution 12 were exercised in full and all shares
purchased by the Company were cancelled, these options would represent 11.8% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 10 March 2005.

The Company does not hold any shares in treasury as at 10 March 2005.



